


















Arihant Capital Markets Ltd.

Annual Report Year 2017-2018 1

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the TWENTY SIXTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) of the members of ARIHANT 
th

CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED (CIN:L67120MP1992PLC007182) will be held on Tuesday, 25  September, 2018 at 12:30 
P.M. at Lemon Tree Hotel, 3,R.N.T.Marg, Indore, (M. P.)- 452001,  to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company (including Audited Consolidated Financial 
stStatements) for the financial year ended March 31 , 2018 and the Reports of the Board of Directors and  Auditors Report thereon.

2. To declare Dividend for the Financial  Year 2017-18.

3. To appoint a director in place of Mr. Pavan Kumar Ved (DIN: 02055767), who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-
appointment.

4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an ordinary resolution:

 To rectify the appointment of  M/s Dinesh Ajmera & Associates (Firm Registration no. 011970C) as the Statutory Auditor of the 
Company and to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 
thand pursuant to the resolution passed by the Members at the Twenty Fifth Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on 09  September, 

2017 appointing M/s Dinesh Ajmera & Associates (Firm Registration no. 011970C) as a Statutory Auditor to hold office from the 
th th conclusion of the 25  AGM till the conclusion of 30 AGM of the Company, the consent of the members, be and is hereby accorded, to 

thratify their appointment as Auditors of the Company, to hold office from the conclusion of this AGM till the Conclusion of the 30  
AGM of the Company on such remuneration plus applicable service tax and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses incurred 
during the course of the audit, of accounts of the Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2018 as may be mutually agreed 
between the Board of Directors and the Auditors.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5. RE-APPOINTMENT OF MRS. ANITA S. GANDHI (DIN : 02864338) AS A WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR OF THE 
COMPANY:

 To Consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT subject to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 (the Act) (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) read with Schedule V of the 
Act and subject to such approvals, permissions and sanctions, as may be required, and subject to such conditions and modifications, as 
may be prescribed or imposed by any of the authorities in granting such approvals, permissions and sanctions, approval of the 
Company be and is hereby accorded for the re-appointment of Mrs.  Anita Surendra Gandhi (DIN : 02864338), Whole Time Director 

stof the Company for a period of two year with effect from 1   February, 2018. 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Salary and Perquisites (including allowances) payable or allowable to the Whole Time Director 
be as follows:

1. Basic Salary ̀  2,09,000 per month.
2. Housing: Furnished/Unfurnished accommodation or House Rent  Allowance in lieu thereof not exceeding 40% of the Basic salary. 
3. Conveyance: company will reimburse actual conveyance and traveling expenses incurred.
4. Performance Pay: Such amount as may be determined by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, not exceeding 2 times of 

the basic salary.
5. Mrs. Gandhi prior to her appointment as Whole Time Director in the Company, in her capacity as an employee of the Company. She 

shall be eligible for Stock Options, as and when the event happens. 
 Provided that the remuneration payable by way of salary, perquisites, performance pay, other allowances and benefits does not 

exceed the limits laid down in Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT notwithstanding anything herein, where in any financial year during the tenure of the Whole Time 
Director, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company may pay to the Whole Time Director, the above 
remuneration as the minimum remuneration by way of salary, perquisites, performance pay, other allowances and benefits as specified 
above subject to receipt of the requisite approvals, if any. 
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 RESOLVED FURTHER  THAT the nature of employment of the Whole Time Director with the Company shall be contractual 
and services can be discontinued by giving one month's notice from either party.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board of Directors of the Company 
(hereinafter referred to as the 'Board' which term shall be deemed to include Nomination and Remuneration Committee thereof, for 
the time being exercising the powers conferred on the Board by this Resolution) be and is hereby authorized to vary, increase, 
enhance, or widen from time to time the terms of  appointment and remuneration of the Whole Time Director and do all such acts, 
deeds, matters and things as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem necessary, proper or desirable and to settle any questions, 
difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard  and further to execute all necessary documents, applications, returns and writings 
as may be necessary, proper, desirable or expedient.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mrs. Anita S. Gandhi shall not be entitled to any sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board 
and/or Committee of Directors her office shall be liable to determination by retirement of Directors by rotation.

6. RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. ASHOK KUMAR JAIN (DIN:00184729) AS A MANAGING DIRECTOR OF THE 
COMPANY:

 To Consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:
 
 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 203 and any other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 and the rules made there under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), 
read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association of the company and subject to the approval of Central 
Govt. or other Govt. Authority /agency/ aboard, if any, the consent of the members of the company be and is hereby accorded to re-
appointment of Mr.  Ashok Kumar Jain (DIN:00184729) as a Chairman and Managing Director of the Company for a period of three 

st styears with effect from 1  August 2018 to 31  July 2021, on the terms and conditions and remuneration as set out in the agreement 
entered into between the Company and Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain, a copy whereof is placed before the meeting duly initialed for the 
purpose of identification, which agreement is hereby specifically approved and sanctioned with authority to the Board of Directors to 
alter and vary the terms and conditions of the said appointment and/or agreement (including authority, from time to time, to 
determine the amount of salary and variable pay as also the type and amount of perquisites and other benefits payable to Mr.  Ashok 
Kumar Jain), in such manner as may be agreed to between the Board of Directors and Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain provided however that 
the remuneration payable to Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain shall not exceed the limits specified in the said agreement as also the limits 
prescribed under schedule V to the Companies  Act, 2013, including any amendment, modification, variation or re-enactment thereof; 

 FURTHER RESOLVED THAT in the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year, the Company subject to requisite 
approvals, may pay to Managing Director, by way remuneration including commission, perquisites and allowances which shall not 
exceed the amount as may be agreed and decided by the Board of Directors of the Company.

 FURTHER RESOLVED THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all 
such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may, in its absolute discretion deem desirable, necessary, expedient, usual or proper to 
implement this resolution.

 FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Mr.  Ashok Kumar Jain shall not be subject to retirement by rotation as per Articles of Association 
of the company during his tenure as Chairman and Managing Director. However, due to compulsion of provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013, if he has to retire by rotation and reelected, then such re-appointment of the Managing Director of the company due 
retirement by rotation shall not constitute a break in his office as a Managing Director of the company.

 FURTHER RESOLVED THAT on the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors do hereby 
st approve re-appointment of Mr.  Ashok Kumar Jain as Managing Director for a further period of three years with effect from 1 August, 

2018, subject to the approval of the shareholders in the AGM on the following material terms and conditions of the agreement as 
follows:

1. Duties and Responsibility : Subject to the superintendence, control and overall direction of the Board of directors of the company, 
The Managing Director shall have the power of general conduct and management of the whole of business and affairs of the company 
except in the matter which may be specifically required to be done by the board either as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 or by the articles of association of the company and the managing director shall also exercise and perform such powers and 
duties as the board of the directors of the company may from time to time determine and shall also do and perform all other acts and 
things which in the ordinary course of business he may be consider necessary or proper or in the interest of the company.

2.  Period of Agreement:  Three years from August 1, 2018 to July 31, 2021.
3.  Remuneration:  ̀  5 Lacs per month.
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 Managerial Remuneration shall not include:
 Contribution to Provident Fund/Superannuation or Annuity Fund
 Gratuity payable
 Leave encashment
4. Commission: He shall be paid commission on the net profit (subject to a maximum of 10% ) as may be determined by the Board or 

Committee thereof from time to time, subject to maximum remuneration permissible of The Companies Act, 2013, or Schedule V 
thereto as may be applicable.

5.  Other terms and conditions, including perquisites :  As laid down in the agreement.
6.  The Managing Director shall be entitled to reimbursement of all actual expenses or charges including travel, entertainment or other 

out-of-pocket expenses incurred by him for and on behalf of the Company, in furtherance of its business and objects.
7.  The terms and conditions of the said appointment may be altered, enhanced or varied from time to time by the Board as it may, in its 

discretion, deem fit.
8.  The aforesaid appointments are subject to termination with 3 months notice from either side.
9.  For the purposes of calculating the value of perquisites, the same shall be evaluated as per Income Tax Rules, 1962, wherever 

applicable or at actual cost.
10.  The Managing Director shall not be entitled to receive any fees for attending meetings of the Board/Committee.

By the order of the Board of Directors

Mahesh Pancholi
(Company Secretary)

M. No. F7143

NOTES:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) IS ENTITLED 
TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND THE MEETING AND POLL/VOTE ON HIS/HER BEHALF. THE PROXY 
NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.  A person can act as a proxy on behalf of not exceeding 50 members and 
holding in aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company. Further, a Member holding more than total share 
capital of the company carrying voting rights may appoint a single proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any other person or 
member.

2. The instrument appointing the proxy, duly completed however in order to be effective, should be deposited at the registered office of 
the Company not less than 48 hours before the meeting.  A proxy form for the AGM is enclosed.

3. Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 forms part of this Notice.

4. Additional information, pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
in respect of the directors seeking appointment / re-appointment at the AGM, is furnished as annexure to the Notice. The directors 
have furnished consent / declaration for their appointment / re-appointment as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Rules there under.

5. Pursuant to the provisions of section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, the register of members and share transfer books of the 
th thCompany will remain closed from Wednesday, 19  September, 2018 to Tuesday, 25  September, 2018 (both days inclusive) in 

connection with the  AGM and the purpose of payment of dividend, if approved by the members.

th6. The dividend as recommended by the Board, if declared at the meeting, will be paid on or after 30  September, 2018 to the members.
 
7. As per the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015 the Company shall use any electronic mode of payments approved by the Reserve Bank of 

India for making payments to the Members. Where the dividend cannot be paid through electronic mode, the same shall be paid by 
warrants with bank accounts details printed thereon.  In case of non availability of bank account details, address of the members will 
be printed on warrants.

8. In all correspondence with the company members are requested to quote their folio number and in case shares are held in electronic 
form, they should quote Client ID and DP ID Number. 

9. The register of Directors' and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under section 170 of the Companies Act, 
2013 will be available for inspection by the members at the  AGM. 

Place: Indore
thDated: 11  August, 2018
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10. The register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the Directors are interested, maintained u/s 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 will 
be available for inspection by the members at the  AGM.

11. Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to inform their Client ID and DP ID number for easier identification 
for attendance at the meeting. 

12. Shareholders who are still holding physical share certificate(s) are requested to consider converting their holding  to de-materialize 
form to eliminate all risk associated with physical Share and for ease of portfolio management. Members can contact to Company for 
assistance in this regard. 

13.  Members desiring to have any information on accounts are requested to write to the Company at least 7 days in advance before the 
date of the meeting so as to enable the management to keep the information ready. Replies will be provided only at the meeting. The 
shareholders are requested to write to the company secretary or to the registrar and share transfer agent, M/s Ankit Consultancy 
Private Limited, regarding transfer of shares and for resolving grievances, if any.  

14. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of the Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every 
participant in the securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their 
Depository Participant(s). Members holding shares in physical form are required to submit their PAN details to the Registrar and 
Share Transfer Agents:

15. Members are requested to notify any changes in their address/bank mandate to their respective depository participants (DPs) in 
respect of their electronic share accounts and to the registrar and share transfer agent of the Company, in respect of their physical 
shares folio, at: 

 Ankit Consultancy Pvt. Ltd.
 Plot No. 60, Electronic Complex, Pardeshipura, 
 Indore-  452010, M.P.

16. Members who are holding physical shares in more than one folio are requested to intimate to the Company/registrar and share 
transfer agent the details of all their folio numbers for consolidation into single folio.

17. Members/Proxies are requested to bring their copy of annual report to the meeting with the attendance slip, duly filled in, for 
attending the meeting.

18. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the AGM are advised to send a duly certified copy 
of the board resolution authorizing their representatives to attend and vote at the meeting.

st19. Dividend for the financial year ended 31  March, 2011, which remains unclaimed or unpaid, will be due for transfer to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund of the Central Government, pursuant to the provision of section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, on 

st st31  October, 2018. Members, who have not yet encashed their dividend warrants for the financial year ended 31  March, 2011 or any 
subsequent financial years are requested to lodge their claims with the Company/ Ankit Consultancy Pvt. Ltd., without delay. 
Members are advised that no claims shall lie against the said fund or against the Company for the amounts of dividend so transferred 
to the said fund. 

 Pursuant to the provisions of section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund Authority (Accounting,  Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (as amended from time to time) (IEPF Rules), during the 
financial year 2017-2018 the Company has transferred 44,441 Equity shares which belongs to total 78 shareholders whose dividend 
of financial year 2009-10 was not been paid or claimed for 7 consecutive years or more as on the due date of transfer to the demat 
account of IEPF Authority. 

20. All documents referred to in the notice and explanatory statement will be available for inspection by the members at the registered 
office of the Company between 10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on all working days from the date hereof up to the date of meeting.

21. The Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2017-18 is being sent by electronic mode to those members whose email 
addresses are registered with the company or the Depositories, unless any member has requested for a physical copy of the same. For 
members who have not registered their email addresses, physical copies are being sent by the permitted mode. To support the “Green 
Initiative”, the members who have not registered their email addresses are requested to register the same with Registrar of the 
Company/Depositories.



th
22. A route map showing directions to reach the venue of the 26  AGM is given at the end of this Notice.

23. In compliance with Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, 
as substituted by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment, Rules 2015, and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has provided a facility to the members to exercise their 
votes electronically through the electronic voting service facility arranged by Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL),  
The facility for voting through ballot paper will also be made available at the AGM and members attending the AGM, who have not 
already cast their votes by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the AGM through ballot paper. Members who have 
cast their votes by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their votes again. The 
instructions for e-voting are annexed to the Notice.

ANNEXURE  TO NOTICE 
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ('THE ACT').

Item No. 5
 Mrs. Anita Surendra Gandhi has a wide experience in the field of finance including corporate finance, primary market and secondary 

market research. She was actively involved in the financial affairs of the company including working capital arrangements, term loan 
syndication, commercial paper placements, credit rating of the company and public issue of the Company. She is a member of The 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and a member of The Institute of Cost and Works Accountants of India. The Board, 
subject to requisite approvals and in accordance with the recommendations of the remuneration committee, approved the re-

stappointment and remuneration payable to Mrs. Gandhi for a period of two year from 1  February, 2018
 
 The Board is of the view that the knowledge and experience of Mrs. Gandhi will be beneficial and valuable to the Company, and 

therefore, recommends her re-appointment as Whole-Time Director of your Company.
 
 Your Directors recommend this resolution as an ordinary resolution for approval of the members.

 A brief profile of Mrs.  Anita S. Gandhi is enclosed at the end of this notice.

 Apart from Mrs.  Anita Surendra Gandhi, no other Director is deemed to be concerned or interested in this item of business.

Item No. 6
 Mr.  Ashok Kumar Jain is one of the promoters and founder of the Company. It is under his vision that the Company has achieved the 

current levels. Considering the overall performance and growth of the company under his dynamic leadership and based on the 
recommendation of the remuneration committee, the board of directors has approved the re-appointment of Mr.  Ashok Kumar Jain 

stas Managing Director of the Company for a further period of three years with effect from 1  August 2018, subject to the approval of 
the shareholders in a AGM. The terms of appointment, including remuneration, have also been approved by the remuneration 
committee of the Company.  The material terms and conditions of the agreement are as follows:

1. The Managing Director shall, subject to the supervision and control of the Board of Directors; carry out such duties as may be 
entrusted to him by the Directors and shall exercise such powers as are delegated to him by the Board of Directors.

2. Period of Agreement :  Three years from August 1, 2018 to July 31, 2021.
3. Remuneration :
 a) Basic Salary:  ̀  5 Lacs per month.
 b) Managerial Remuneration shall not include:
  i. Contribution to Provident Fund/Superannuation or Annuity Fund
  ii. Gratuity payable
  iii. Leave encashment

 Except Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain and Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain, none of the other Directors is interested in this resolution. A brief profile of Mr. 
Ashok Kumar Jain is enclosed at the end of this notice.

By the order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Mahesh Pancholi

(Company Secretary)
M. NO.  F7143

Place: Indore
thDated: 11  August, 2018 
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AGM Venue Map - Lemon Tree Hotel 

Particulars  Mr.  Ashok Kumar Jain

 

Mr. Pavan Kumar Ved

 

Mrs. Anita Surendra 
Gandhi  

DIN No.  00184729  02055767 
 02864338 

Date of Birth  March 01, 1954  August 12, 1954  December 11, 1963  

Date of Appointment  June 25, 1992  February 12, 2016 January 30, 2010 

Qualifications  M.Com, CA,  M.Com, M.A. (Eco), 
LLB, CS, CMA

 
B.Com, CA, ICWA  

Expertise in Specific 
functional Area  

He is the promoter director 
of the company and has 
more than 34 years of rich 
experience in the field 
of financial services, 
merchant banking and 
securities broking.

 

 

 

More than 32 years of 
rich experience in 
Income Tax Department. 

 Wide experience in 
primary and 
secondary market 
research.

 

Directorship held in other 
public companies (excluding 
private companies, foreign 
companies and section 8 
companies

 

 

6
 

Nil
 

Nil
 

Memberships/ Chairmanship 
of Committees of other 
public companies (includes 
only Audit Committee and 
Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee  

 

Nil
 

Nil
 

Nil
 

No. of shares held in the 
company

 6063040

 

Nil

 

Nil

 

 

Details of directors seeking appointment /re-appointment at the AGM



SHARE HOLDER INSTRUCTIONS FOR E-VOTING

 In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and 
Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide 
members facility to exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the Annual General Meeting by 
electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-Voting Services. The facility of casting the votes by the members using 
an electronic voting system from a place other than venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) will be provided by Central Depository 
Services (India) Limited (CDSL).

1. The facility for voting either through electronic voting system or through ballot / polling paper shall also be made available at the 
thvenue of the 26  AGM.  The member attending the meeting who have not already cast their vote through remote e-voting shall be 

able to exercises their voting rights at the meeting

2.  The members who have already cast their vote through remote e-voting may attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their 
vote again at the AGM. 

nd th3. The remote e-voting period commences on 22  September, 2018 (9:00 am) and ends on 24  September, 2018 (5:00 pm). During this 
thperiod members of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 18   

September, 2018, may cast their vote by electronically

4. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the 
member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

5. The instructions for Members for voting electronically are as under:-

 (A) In case of Members receiving e-mail: 

Step 1:  Open your web browser during the voting period and log on to the e-voting website: www.evotingindia.com           

Step 2:  Now click on "Shareholders" to cast your votes. 

Step 3:  Now, fill up the following details in the appropriate boxes: 

Step 4: Next, enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 
  If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of any 

company, then your existing password is to be used. 

 # Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to login.

Step 6 :   After entering these details appropriately, click on "SUBMIT” tab.

Step 7:  Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, members holding 
shares in demat form will now reach 'Password Creation' menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login 
password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for 
resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL 

User-ID a) For CDSL: 16 digits Beneficiary Id 

b) For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client Id 

c) Members holding shares in physical form should enter the Folio 
Number registered with the Company  

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 

PAN (Permanent  
Account Number)  

Enter your 10 digit alpha —numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for 
both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)  

·  Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant 
are (Permanent requested to use the first two letters of their name and the last 8 digits 
of the demat account/folio number in the PAN field. Account Number) 

 
 

 
·   In case the folio number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of 0's before 

the number after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL letters. Eg. If your 
name is SURESH Kumar with folio number 100 then enter SU00000100 in the PAN Field. 

 
DOB (Date Of 
Birth)  

 

Enter the Date of Birth as recorded in your demat account or in the company records for the 
said demat account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy format

 
 Dividend Bank

details#

  

 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account orin the company records 
for the said demat account or folio. Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank Details in order to 
login. If the details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the number of 
shares held by you as on the cutoff date in the Dividend Bank details field.

   

  

Step 5:  If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:

Arihant Capital Markets Ltd.
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platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidential.

Step 8: For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this 
Notice.

Step 9:  Click on the EVSN for the relevant <ARIHANT CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED> on which you choose to vote.
 
Step 10:  Click On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. 

Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that 
you dissent to the Resolution.

 Step 11:  Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

 Step 12:  After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”.  A confirmation box will be displayed. If you 
wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on“CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote.

  Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
 
Step 13:  You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page. If Demat account 

holder has forgotten the changed password then Enter the user ID and the image verification code and click on Forgot 
Password and enter the details as prompted by the System.

  Step 14:  Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians
Ÿ Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log on to 

www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporate. 
Ÿ A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.
Ÿ After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The 

Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.
Ÿ The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the 

accounts they would be able to cast their vote. 
Ÿ A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if 

any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

(B) In case of Members receiving physical copy:

Please follow all steps from step 1 to step 14 above to caste vote.
 
6. In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting 

manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

7. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the depositories 
as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as voting at the AGM through ballot paper.

8. The company has appointed Mr.  Virendra G. Bhatt, Practicing Company Secretary as the scrutinizer for conducting the remote e-
voting and the voting process at the AGM in a fair and transparent manner.

9. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow e-voting with the 
assistance of scrutinizer for all those Members who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-
voting facility.

10. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first count the votes cast at the meeting and thereafter 
unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of  at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company 
and shall make, not later than three days of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer's report of the total votes cast in 
favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the 
result of the voting forthwith.

11. The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer's  shall be displayed at the Registered Office of the Company and 
uploaded on the Company's website www.arihantcapital.com as well as on the website of CDSL after the same is declared by the 
Chairman/authorized person. The Results shall also be simultaneously forwarded to the Bombay stock exchange, Mumbai. 



BOARD'S REPORT

Dear Members,

 Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the Twenty Sixth Board Report on the business and operations of your Company along 
st

with the Standalone and Consolidated  Audited Financial Statements and accounts for the year ended 31  March, 2018.

Financial Highlights

The following table gives the financial highlights of your company on a standalone and consolidated basis for the financial year 2017-2018 :
       

Review of Operations
 
 During the year under review, the company has posted gross income of ̀  9,426.99 lacs (previous year ̀  7,694.15 lacs) on a standalone 

basis and a net profit after tax, for the year 2017-18, of ` 2,003.25 Lacs compared to `1,491.03 Lacs in the previous year. On a 
consolidated basis during the year under review, the company has posted gross income of  ̀  10,244.41 Lacs (previous year ̀  8, 694.62 
Lacs). The consolidated net profit during the same period stands at ` 2,066.83 Lacs as compared to ` 1,668.51 lacs in the previous 
year. 

 A detailed note on the Company's operational and financial performance is given in Management Discussion and Analysis (MDA) 
Report which is annexed to the Directors' Report.  The MDA report has been prepared in compliance with the terms of Regulation 
34(2) (e) of SEBI (LODR) 2015 with the BSE Ltd.

Transfer to General Reserves

 The Company proposes to transfer `1,500.00 Lacs to the general reserves out of the amount available for appropriations and an 
amount of ̀ 1,270.03 Lacs are proposed to be retained in the Profit and Loss Account.
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Particulars     

Standalone  Consolidated  

2017 - 2018  2016 - 2017  

Gross Income 
 

9426.99
 

7694.15
 

10244.41
 

8694.62

Profit Before Depreciation
  

2961.34
 

2322.87
 

3079.18
 

2588.90

Depreciation
  

92.82
 

75.77
 

99.15
 

83.59

Profit Before Tax 
     

2868.52
 

2247.07
 

2980.03
 

2505.31

Provision for Taxation 

 

865.27

 

756.05

 

913.20

 

836.79

Net Profit After Taxation  

   

2003.25

 

1491.03

 

2066.83

 

1668.51

Balance of Profit and Loss a/c (b/f)

 

940.29

 

249.26

 

1205.87

 

588.60

Profit Available for Appropriation

  

2943.54

 

1740.29

 

3272.70

 

2257.12

Appropriations:

    Transfer to General Reserve

   

1500.00

 

800.00

 

1585.00

 

1040.00

Transfer to Statutory Reserve

 

Nil

 

Nil

 

10.26

 

11.25

Dividend (inclusive of dividend tax) 

 

173.51

 

0.00

 

187.96

 

0.00

Balance Carried to Balance Sheet 1270.03 940.29 1489.47 1205.87

2017 - 2018 2016 - 2017
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Share Capital

 The paid up Equity Share Capital as at March 31, 2018 stood at `10.41 Crore. There has been no change in the capital structure of 
company during the year under review.

 
Dividend

 Your Directors are pleased to recommend the dividend ̀  0.75 (15% per share) on the Equity Shares of the Company for the financial 
thyear 2017-2018. The dividend payout is subject to approval of member at the ensuing 26  Annual General Meeting.

Public Deposits

 During the Financial Year 2017-18 under review The Company has neither invited nor accepted any public deposits within the 
meaning of section 73 & 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance or Deposit) Rules 2014. 

Subsidiaries

st
 As on 31  March, 2018 Your Company had eight wholly owned subsidiaries. During the year, the Board of Directors reviewed the 

business operations and financial performance of the said Companies.

 1.  Arihant Futures and Commodities Limited.
 2.  Arihant Financial Services Limited.
 3.  Arihant Lifespace Infra Developers Limited. 
 4.  Arihant Insurance Broking Services Limited.
 5.  Arihant Financial Planners and Advisors Pvt. Ltd.
 6.  Ahinsa Lifespace Infraheight Ltd.
 7.  Arihant Housing Finance Corporation Limited.
 8.  Arihant Capital (IFSC) Limited.

 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company has prepared Consolidated Financial 
Statements of your Company which is forming part of this Annual Report. Further, a Statement containing salient features of financial 
information of the Subsidiary Companies is disclosed in the prescribed format  AOC-1, pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is annexed with this Report. The Statement also provides details of 
performance and financial position of each of the Companies. The Company will provide a copy of separate annual accounts in 
respect of each of its subsidiary to any shareholder of the Company who asks for it

 In accordance with the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Audited Financial Statements, the Consolidated 
Financial Statements and the related information of the Company and the Audited Accounts of the Subsidiaries Companies, are 
available on our website i.e. www.arihantcapital.com. These documents shall also be available for inspection during the business hours, 
i.e. between 10.00 A.M. to 6.00 P.M. on all working days (except Saturday and Sunday) at the Registered Office of the Company. In 
accordance with the accounting standard AS-21, the consolidated financial statements are furnished herewith and form part this 
Annual Report. 

Directors

 In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. 
Pavan Kumar Ved who is due to retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment. The Board recommends his re-appointment for the consideration of the members of the company at the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting. During the year there has been no change with respect to key managerial personnel.

Independent Directors

 All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 (1) (b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

 As per requirement of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 separate meeting of the independent directors (“Annual Independent Directors Meeting”) was convened, which 
reviewed the performance of the Board (as a whole), the non-independent directors and the Chairman.
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Remuneration and Nomination Policy

 The Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays down a framework in relation to remuneration of directors, key managerial 
personnel and senior management of the company. This policy also lays down criteria for selection and appointment of Board 
members. The details of this policy are explained in the Corporate Governance Report. During the year under review, there has been 
no change in the policy.

Meetings of the Board and its Committees

 The details of the meetings of the Board and Committees held during the financial year 2017-18 and composition and terms of 
reference of the Committees are detailed in the Corporate Governance Report.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments by Company

 Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in 
the notes to Financial Statements.

Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism

 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 (9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of Companies (Meetings of Board 
and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company has in place a Whistle Blower Policy, which provides for 
a vigil mechanism that encourages and supports its Directors and employees to report instances of illegal activities, unethical 
behavior, actual or suspected, fraud or violation of the Company's Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. It also provides for adequate 
safeguards against victimization of persons who use this mechanism and direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in 
exceptional cases. 

 During the year under review, no protected disclosure concerning any reportable matter in accordance with the Vigil mechanism and 
Whistle Blower policy of the Company was received by the Company.

 The Whistle Blower Policy has been posted on the website of the company www.arihantcapital.com.

Transfer of  Amounts to Investor Education and Protection Fund 

 Pursuant to the Section 123 & 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, the relevant amounts which remained unpaid or unclaimed for a 
period of seven years from the date they become due for payment have been transferred by the Company to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund.

Conservation Of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings/ Outgo

 In view of the nature of activities which are being carried on by the Company, Rules 8(3) A and B of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 concerning conservation of energy and technology absorption respectively are not applicable to the Company. The company 
has been continuously using technology in its operations; however efforts are made to further reduce energy consumption. 

 During the year, The Company did not have any foreign exchange inflow and outflow. 

Information as Per Rule 5(2) Of the Chapter Xiii, the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 

 The information required Pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) & 5(3) of the Companies 
st(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and forming part of the Board Report for the year ended 31  

March, 2018.
 
 Having regard to the provision of the first proviso to section 136 (1) of the Act and as advised the Annual Report excluding the 

aforesaid information is being sent to the members of the Company. The said information is available for inspection by the Members at 
the Registered Office of the Company during business hours and any member interested in obtaining such information may write to 
the company secretary and same will be furnished on request.
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 Risk Management & Internal Financial Control and Its Adequacy

 Company has an effective risk management framework for identifying, prioritizing and mitigating risks which may impact attainment 
of short and long term business goals of your company. The risk management framework, which is based on our holding Company's 
risk management process, is aligned with strategic planning, deployment and capital project evaluation process of the Company. The 
process aims to analyze internal and external environment and manage economic, financial, market, operational, compliance and 
sustainability risks and capitalizes opportunities of business success.

 The Internal Financial control framework has been designed to provide reasonable assurance with respect to recording and 
providing reliable financial and operational information, complying with applicable laws, safeguarding assets from unauthorized use, 
executing transaction with proper authorization and ensuring compliances with corporate policies.

Performance Evaluation

 The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board committees, and individual directors 
pursuant the provision of the act and the corporate governance requirement as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement, Regulation 2015 (SEBI Listing Regulation).

 The performance of the board was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from all the Directors on the basis of criteria such as 
board composition and structure, effectiveness of board processes, information and functioning, etc. as provided by the Guidance 
Note on Board Evaluation issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India. 

 The performance of the committee was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the committee members on the basis of 
criteria such as the composition of the committee, effectiveness of committee meetings, etc.

 The Board and the Nomination and remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of individual director on the basis of 
criteria such as the contribution of the individual directors to the board and committee meeting like preparedness on the issues to be 
discussed, meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in meeting, etc.

 
Director's Responsibility Statement 

 In pursuance of Section 134(3) (c) read with section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Director's statement, as an averment of 
their responsibility, is as under: 

st (i) The Company has, in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31 , 2018, followed the applicable 
accounting standards along with proper explanations relating to material departures, if any.

 (ii) The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that 
stare reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs as at 31  March, 2018 and of the profit or 

loss of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 (iii) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud 
and other irregularities.

st (iv) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31  March, 2018 on a going concern basis.
 (v) The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal financial 

controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and
 (vi) That the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and those 

systems are adequate and operating effectively. 

Auditors and Auditors Report 

 Your Company's Auditors M/s Dinesh  Ajmera & Associates (Firm Registration no. 011970C), were appointed at the last  AGM to 
thhold office until the conclusion of the 30  AGM.

 As per the provisions of the Section 139 of the Act, the appointment of the Statutory Auditors is required to be ratified by the 
members at every AGM of the Company.  Accordingly, the rectification of appointment of M/s Dinesh Ajmera & Associates Chartered 
Accountants, as Statutory Auditors of the Company, is being placed before the members in the ensuring  AGM.

 In terms of provisions of Section 139 of the Act, M/s Dinesh Ajmera & Associates have furnished a certificate that their appointment is 
within the limits prescribed. 
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 There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by Statutory Auditors in their Report. 
 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report

 The Management Discussion and Analysis Report covering the matters listed in Clause 34(2) (e) of the SEBI (LODR), 2015, for the 
year under review is given separately in the Annual Report.

Corporate Governance

 Your Company is committed towards maintaining high standards of Governance. The Report on Corporate Governance as 
stipulated under Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. A Certificate from 
Practicing Company Secretary confirming compliance to the corporate governance requirements by the Company is attached to this 
report.

Policy on Disclosure of Material Events and Information

 There have been no material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company which have occurred 
between the end of the Financial  Year of the Company to which the Financial Statements relate and the date of the report.

 
Corporate Social Responsibility

 Your Company is committed to improve the quality of life of the communities in its focus areas through long term value creation for 
all its Stakeholders through its various Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) initiatives. 

 Brief details on various focus areas of interventions are part of the Annual Report on CSR activities annexed to this report as 
Annexure-C in the format prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. The policy adopted by 
the Company can be viewed at website of the Company.

Extract of Annual Return

 As provide under Section 92(3) of the act, the extract of the Annual return is given in Annexure-A in the prescribed Form MGT-9, 
which is a part of this report.

Secretarial  Auditor

 The Board appointed M/s Ajit Jain & Co., Practicing Company Secretary to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The 
Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith Annexure-B. The secretarial audit report does contain any qualifications, 
reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimer. 

Related Party Transactions

 All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year under review were on arm's length basis and in the 
ordinary course of the business and that the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under 
are not attracted. Thus, disclosures in Form AOC-2 in terms of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not required. There are no 
materially significant related party transactions made by the company with the promoters, key managerial personnel or other 
designated persons which may have potential conflict with interest of the company at large.  All related party transactions are placed 
before the Audit Committee and the Board for approval, if applicable. Prior omnibus approval of the  Audit Committee is obtained for 
the transactions which are of a foreseen and repetitive nature. The Company has developed a framework through Standard 
Operating Procedures for the purpose of identification and monitoring of such Related Party Transactions and suitable disclosures as 
required by AS-18 has been made in notes of Financial Statement. 

General

 Your directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no transactions on 
these items during the year under review:

Ÿ Neither the Managing Director nor Whole Time Director of the company received any remuneration or commission from 
any of its subsidiaries.

Ÿ No significant or material orders were passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals which impact the going concern status 
any company's operation in future.
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Disclosures under the Sexual Harassment of  Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 

 Your Company has zero tolerance towards sexual harassment at workplace. It has a well- defined policy in compliance with the 
requirements of the Sexual Harassment of women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the rules 
framed there under.  An Internal Committee is in place to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment.  All employees 
are covered under policy. The Company has not received any complaint of sexual harassment during financial year 2017-2018. 
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Annexure-A
FORM NO. MGT-9

 EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
 As on the financial year ended on 31/03/2018

 [Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i CIN L67120MP1992PLC007182 

ii Registration Date 25/06/1992 

iii Name of the Company Arihant Capital Markets Ltd. 

iv Category/Sub-Category of the Company Company limited by shares/ Indian non Govt. Company 

v Address of the Registered office and contact details  E/5, Ratlam Kothi Area, Indore - 452001 (M.P .) 

T. +91-731-2519610 

F. +91 -731-3048915 

vi Whether listed company  Yes 

vii
 

Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and 
Transfer Agent, if any

 
 

Ankit Consultancy Private Limited
 

Plot No. 60, Electronic Complex
 

Pardeshipura, Indore –
 

452010 (M.P.)
 

T. +91 -731-2551745
 

F. +91 731 4065798
 

S. 
No.

Name and Address of 
the Company 

 

CIN/GLN Holding / 
Subsidiary/ 
Associate 

 
 % of shares 

held 

 

Applicable 
Section 

 

1

 

ARIHANT FUTURES AND 
COMMODITIES LTD.

 

Add: E/5, Ratlam Kothi Area, 
Indore-452001 (M.P.)

 U51225MP2002PLC015401

 

Subsidiary Company

 

100%

 

Section 2(87)

 

2

 

ARIHANT FINANCIAL 
SERVICES LTD.

 

Add: E/5, Ratlam Kothi Area, 
Indore-452001 (M.P.)

 U67120MP2006PLC019160

 

Subsidiary Company

 

100%

 

Section 2(87)

 

3

 

ARIHANT LIFESPACE INFRA 
DEVELOPERS LIMITED

 

Add: E/5, Ratlam Kothi Area, 
Indore-452001 (M.P.)

 U70100MP2008PLC020730

 

Subsidiary Company

 

100%

 

Section 2(87)

 

4

 

ARIHANT INSURANCE 
BROKING

 

SERVICES LTD.

 

Add: E/5, Ratlam Kothi Area, 
Indore-452001 (M.P.)

 U66000MP2009PLC021788

 

Subsidiary Company

 

100%

 

Section 2(87)

 

     

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:- 

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES – 

- -

S. No.   Name and Description of main products /services  

 

 NIC Code of the 
Product/ service  

 

% to total turnover of the 
company  

 

1. Securities brokerage services 99715210 97% 

himashwetha.j
Highlight

himashwetha.j
Highlight
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5 ARIHANT FINANCIAL 
PLANNERS AND ADVISORS 
PVT. LTD.

 

Add: E/5, Ratlam Kothi Area, 
Indore-452001 (M.P.)

 
U74140MP2011PTC026953 Subsidiary Company 100% Section 2(87)

6

 

AHINSA LIFESPACE 
INFRAHEIGHT LIMITED

 

 U70102MP2014PLC032196

 

Subsidiary Company

 

100%

 

Section 2(87)

 

Add: E/5, Ratlam Kothi Area, 
Indore-452001 (M.P.)

7

 

ARIHANT HOUSING 
FINANCE COPRPORATION 
LIMITED

 

Add: 1011, Solitaire 
Corporate Park, building No. 

st10, 1  Floor, Chakala, 

 

Andheri (E), Mumbai - 400 093

 

U67190MH2014PLC265689

 
 

Subsidiary Company

 

100%

 

Section 2(87)

 

8

 

ARIHANT CAPITAL (IFSC) 
LIMITED

 

Add:

 

Unit No. 38/8 GIFT 
Aspire-1 Business Centre, 
Ground Floor, Block 12, 
Road 1D, Zone -

 

I GIFT SEZ 
Gandhinagar GJ 382355 

 

U65990GJ2016PLC094776

 

Subsidiary Company

 

100%

 

Section 2(87)

 

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
 i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year 
(01/04/2017)

No. of Shares held at the end of the year 
(31/03/2018)

% of
Change
during 
the year Demat Physical 

 

Total % of  Total 
shares

 

Demat Physical 

 

Total % of 
Total 
shares

 

A. Promoters 

         

(1) Indian 

         

a) Individual/Huf

 

15421052

 

-

 

15421052

 

74.06

 

15421052

 

-

 

15421052

 

74.06

 

-
b) Central Govt.

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-
c) State Govt. (s)

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-
d) Bodies Corp.

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-
e) Banks / FI 

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-
f) Any Other…. 

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-
Sub- total (A) (1):

  

15421052

 

-

 

15421052

 

74.06

 

15421052

 

-

 

15421052

 

74.06

 

(2) Foreign  

         

a) NRIs -Individuals 

 

-

        

b) Other –Individuals  

  

-

        

c) Bodies Corp. 

 

-

        

d) Banks / FI 

 

-

        

e) Any Other….

 

-

        

Sub-total (A) (2):-

  

-

 

-
-
-
-
-
-

 

-
-
-
-
-
-

      

Total shareholding of 
Promoter (A) = 
(A)(1)+(A)(2)

 15421052

 

-

 

15421052

 

74.06

 

15421052

 

-

 

15421052

 

74.06

 

B. Public Shareholding  

         

1. Institutions

         

a) Mutual Funds
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 
-

 
-

b) Banks / FI 
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 
-

 
-

c) Central Govt.
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 
-

 
-

d) State Govt.(s) - - - -  -  -  -  -  -
e) Venture Capital Funds  - - - -  -  -  -  -  -
f) Insurance Companies  - - - -  -  -  -  -  -
g) FIIs - - - -  -  -  -  -  -
h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds - - - -  -  -  -  -  -
i) Others (specify)

 
-

 
- - - - - - - -

Sub-total (B)(1):-

-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-

-
 

- - - - - - - -

-
-
-
-
-
-
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          2. Non-Institutions 
         a) Bodies Corp.

         i) Indian 271768 67520 339288  1.63  416651  67520  484171  2.32  0.70
ii) Overseas 

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

     
b) Individuals

         
i) Individual shareholders 
holding nominal share capital 
upto `1lakh 

 

1792227

 

420264

 

2212491

 

10.63

 

2184165

 

344344

 

2528509

 
 

12.14

 

1.51

ii) Individual 

 
shareholders

 
holding nominal 

share capital in excess of `1 lakh

2808217

 

-

 

2808217

 

13.49

 

2079144

 

-

 

2079144

 

9.99

 

-3.50

c) Others 
(specify) 

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

     

i)NRI & OCB

 

32941

 

-

 

32941

 

0.16

 

295117

 

-

 

295117

 

1.42

 

1.26

ii) Clearing Member

 

8571

  

8571

 

0.04

 

14567

 

-

 

14567

 

0.07

 

0.03

Sub-total (B)(2):-

  

4913724

 

487784

 

5401508

 

25.94

 

4989644

 

411864

 

5401508

 

25.94

 

0.00

Total Public Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2) 

4913724 487784 5401508 25.94 4989644 411864 5401508 25.94 0.00

C. Shares held by Custodian 
for GDRs & ADRs

- - - - - - - - -

Grand Total (A+B+C) 20334776 487784 20822560 100.00 20410696 411864 20822560 100.00 0.00

- - - - -

 (ii) Shareholding of Promoters

S. 

No.  

Shareholders 

Name 

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year 

 

 

 

Shareholding at the end of the year  

 
% of 
Change 

in 

share

holding 

during 

the year 

No. of 

Shares 
 

 

% of total 

Shares of the 

company 
 

 

%of Shares 

Pledged / 

encumbered to 

total shares 

 % of Total 

shares  

No. of 

Shares 
 

 

% of total 

Shares of 

the 

company 

 

 

% of Shares 

Pledged / 

encumbered 

to total 

shares % of 
Total shares

1

 

Ashok Kumar Jain

 

6063040

 

29.12

 

-

 

6063040

 

29.12

 

-

2

 

Kiran Jain

 

4728320

 

22.71

 

-

 

4728320

 

22.71

 

-

3

 

Sunil Kumar Jain

 

1606656

 

7.71

 

-

 

1606656

 

7.71

 

-

4

 

Arpit Jain

 

1147840

 

5.51

 

-

 

1147840

 

5.51

 

-

5

 

Swati Jain

 

915516

 

4.40

 

-

 

915516

 

4.40

 

-

6

 

Shruti Jain

 

622080

 

2.99

 

-

 

622080

 

2.99

 

-

7

 

Ratik Jain

 

192000

 

0.92

 

-

 

192000

 

0.92

 

-

8

 

Kamal Kumar Jain

 

HUF

 

51200

 

0.25

 

-

 

51200

 

0.25

 

-

9 Anvita Jain 38400 0.18 - 38400 0.18 -

10 Meena Jain 30400 0.15 - 30400 0.15 -

11 Kamal Kumar Jain 25600 0.12 - 25600 0.12 -

 (iii )  Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

S. No.  Shareholding at the beginning of the year  
Cumulative Shareholding during the year   

  No. of shares  

 

% of total shares 

of the company 
 

No. of shares  

 

% of total shares 

of the company 

 
At the beginning of the year 

     

 
Date wise Increase / Decrease in 
Promoters Share holding during 
the year specifying the reasons for 
increase / decrease (e.g. allotment/
 transfer / bonus/ sweat equity 
etc): 

N.A.
 

N.A.
 

N.A.
 

N.A.
 

 

 At the End of the year 

- - - -

- - - -

Particulars 

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

-

-

-
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 (v)  Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

 (iv)  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs 
and ADRs):

S. No.
 

Top 10 Shareholders 
 

 

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

01.04.2017 

Cumulative Shareholding at 
the end of the year

31.03.2018
 

 

No. of shares  

 

% of total 

shares of the 

company  

 

No. of shares  

 

% of total 

shares of the 

company

 
1

 
Vijaya Jain

 
442269

 
2.12

 
303215

 
1.46

2
 

Manorama Jain 
 

435238
 

2.09
 

240231
 

1.15

3
 

Vandana Jain
 

322480
 

1.55
 

322480
 

1.55

4
 

Vinodkumar Harakchand Daga
 

290895
 

1.40
 

290895
 

1.40

5
 

Vijit Ramawat
 

108185
 

0.52
 

0
 

0.00

6
 

Mahesh Vrajlal Babaria 110800
 

0.53
 

0
 

0.00

7

 

Ankit Agrawal

 

74520

 

0.36

 

74000

 

0.35

8

 

Shrijika Agrawal

 

100764

 

0.48

 

59278

 

0.28

9

 

Rashi Daga

 

90000

 

0.43

 

0

 

0.00

10 Sushila Paras Kumar Daga

 

116000

 

0.56

 

60058

 

0.28

11

 

Parshva Kumar Harakchand Daga

  

118202

 

0.57

 

118202

 

0.57

12

 

Safal Capital (India) Limited

 

0

 

0.00

 

86262

 

0.41

13

 

Niraj Kumar Vinod Kumar Daga

 

3493

 

0.01

 

88493

 

0.42

14 Garishma Neeraj Daga 0 0.00 85000 0.41

S. No.   Shareholding at the beginning of 
the year 1-4-2017 

Cumulative Shareholding during 
the year 31-3-2018 

 

For Each of the 
Directors and KMP 

 
 

  
 

As on Date

 No. of shares  
 

% of total 
shares of the 

company  
 

No. of shares  
 

% of total 
shares of the 

company  
 

1.  Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain 
(Managing Director)  

01/04/2017  6063040  29.12  6063040  29.12
31/03/2018  -  -  6063040  29.12

2.  Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain 
(Director)  

01/04/2017  1606656  7.71  1606656  7.71
31/03/2018  -  -  1606656  7.71

3.  Mr. Akhilesh Rathi  01/04/2017  -  -  -  -
31/03/2018  -  -  39847  0.19

4.  Mr. Parag Rameshbhai 
Shah (Director)  

01/04/2017  29000  0.13  29000  0.13
31/03/2018  -  -  -  -

5.  Mrs. Anita S. Gandhi 
(Whole Time 
Director)  

01/04/2017  -  -  -  -

31/03/2018  -  -  -  -

6.   Mr. Pavan Kumar Ved 
(Director)  

01/04/2017  -  -  -  -

31/03/2018  -  -  -  -

7.  Mr. Shailesh Kumath 
(Additional Director)  

01/04/2017  -  -  -  -
14/06/2017  -  -  -  -

8.  Mr. Ashish Maheshwari 
(Director)  

27/05/2017  -  -  -  -
31/03/2018  -  -  -  -

9.  
Mr. Mahesh Pancholi 
(Company Secretary)

 

01/04/2017  272  -  272  -
31/03/2018  -  -  272  -

10.  Mr. Tarun Goyal 
(CFO)

01/04/2017     
31/03/2018

-
-

-
-

-
-

-
-
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V. INDEBTEDNESS 

 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment 

 Secured Loans  

excluding deposits  

Unsecured  

Loans  

Deposits  

 

Total  

Indebtedness  

Indebtedness at 

the beg inning of 

the financial year  

    

i) Principal Amount  846.32    846.32

ii) Interest due but 

not paid  

   

iii) Interest accrued 

but not due 
 

   

Total (i+ii+iii) 
 

 

846.32
   

846.32

Change in 

Indebtedness 

during the 

financial year 
 

 

   

 
Addition 

 

 

8299.83
 

8299.83

 
Reduction 

 

 

2.69
 

2.69

Net Change 

 

 

8297.14

 

8297.14

Indebtedness at 

the 

 end of the 

financial year 

 

 

i) Principal Amount 

 

9143.46

 

9143.46

ii) Interest due but 

not paid 

 

 

-

iii) Interest accrued 

but not due  

-

Total (i+ii+iii) 9143.46 9143.46

Particulars 

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: 

S. 
No. 

Particulars of 
Remuneration 

Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain 
(Managing Director)

Mrs. Anita S. Gandhi 
(Whole Time Director)

Total Amount 

1 Gross salary 

(a) Salary as per 
provisions contained in 
section 17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961 

48,00,000 32,36,800 80,36,800

(b) Value of perquisites 
u/s 17(2) Income-tax 
Act, 1961 

84,029 - 84,029

(Amt. in Lacs)

(Amt. in `)

-

-

-

-

- -

- -

-

-

-

-

- -

- --

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

himashwetha.j
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2 Stock Option - - -

3 Sweat Equity - - -

4 Commission 1,25,00,000 - 1,25,00,000

- as % of profit 10 - 10

- Others, specify… - - -

5 Others, please specify - - -

Total (A) 1,73,84,029 32,36,800 2,06,20,829

 B. Remuneration to other directors: 

S. 
No. 

 Particulars of 
Remuneration

 

 
Name of Directors

 

Total 
Amount 

  
Mr.  Akhilesh 

Rathi 

Mr. Sunil 
Kumar Jain 

Mr. Parag 
Rameshbhai 

Shah
 

Mr. Pavan 
Kumar Ved

 

Mr. Shailesh 
Kumath  

Mr.  Ashish 
Maheshwari

 

 

1 Independent 
Directors

 

       

 
Fee for 
attending board 
/ committee 
meetings

 

80,000
 

-
 

40,000
 
-
 

20,000
 
60,000

 
2,00,000

 

Commission

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

 
Others, please 
specify 

 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

 

Total (1) 

 

80,000

 

-

 

40,000

 

-

 

20,000

 

60,000

 

2,00,000

2
 

Other Non -
Executive 
Directors 

 

      

 
Fee for 
attending board 
/ committee 
meetings

 

-

 
80,000

 
-

 
80,000

 
-

 
-

 
1,60,000

 

Commission

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

 

Others, please 
specify 

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

 

Total (2) 

 

-

 

80,000

 

-

 

80,000

 

-

 

-

 

1,60,000

 

Total (B)=(1+2) 

 

80,000

 

80,000

 

40,000

 

80,000

 

20,000

 

60,000

 

3,60,000

 

Total Managerial 
Remuneration

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

2,06,20,829

 

Overall Ceiling 
as per the Act

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

- 3,07,45,906

(Amt. in `)

himashwetha.j
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Nill 

 C Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD 

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 

Type  

 

Section of the 
Companies  

Act 

 

 

Brief 
Description 

 

 

Details of Penalty / 
Punishment/ 

Compounding 
fees imposed 

 

Authority  

[RD / NCLT  

/ COURT]  

Appeal made, 
if any 

(give Details) 

 

 

 

 

A. COMPANY 

 

Penalty 

Punishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS 

Penalty 

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER 
OFFICERS 
IN DEFAULT 

Penalty 

Punishment

Compounding
 

S. 

No.
 Particulars of Remuneration

 Key Managerial Personnel  
 

Total 
 

 

  Company 

Secretary 
 

CFO  

 

 

1
 

Gross salary 
    

 (a) Salary as per provisions contained
in section 17(1) of the Income-tax 
Act, 1961 

 

6,79,572 12,84,027  19,63,599  

 (b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
Income-tax Act, 1961 

 

- -
 

-
 

 
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under 
section 17(3) Income - tax Act, 1961 

  

-
 

-
 

-
 

2

 

Stock Option 

 

-

 

-

 

-

 
3
 

Sweat Equity 
 

-

 
-

 

-

 
4

 

Commission 

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

 

-

 

as % of profit 

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

 

-

 

Others, specify… 

 

-

 

-

 

-

 
5 Others, please specify  

 

- - - 

Total 6,79,572 12,84,027 19,63,599

(Amt. in `)
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Annexure - B 
Form MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
stFOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31  March, 2018

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members, 
ARIHANT CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED
(CIN: L67120MP1992PLC007182)
E-5 Ratlam Kothi Area,
Indore (M.P.) 452001

 We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 
practices by Arihant Capital Markets Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

 Based on our  verification  of  the  Company's books,  papers,  minute books,  forms  and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the 
conduct of secretarial audit,  We  hereby  report  that  in  our  opinion,  the  company  has,  during  the  audit  period covering the 

stfinancial year ended on 31  March, 2018 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has 
proper Board-processes and compliance- mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter:

 We  have  examined  the  books,  papers,  minute  books,  forms  and  returns  filed  and  other records maintained by Arihant 
stCapital Markets Limited for the financial year ended on 31  March, 2018 according to the provisions of:

I. The Companies  Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under and the Companies Act, 1956 to the extent applicable;

II. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under;

III. The Depositories  Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

IV. Foreign Exchange Management  Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, 
Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI  Act'):-
 a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial  Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
 b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
 c) The  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue  of  Capital  and  Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;
 d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (share based employee benefit) Regulations, 2014.
 e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable to the 

company during the audit period)
 f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the 

Companies Act and dealing with client;
 g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the company during 

the audit period);  and
 h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not applicable to the company during the 

audit period)
 i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015

VI.    Other applicable Acts;
 (a) Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002;
 (b) The Employees Provident Fund & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952;
 (c) Employees State Insurance Act, 1948;
 (d) Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972;
 (e) The Sexual Harassment of  Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013;

 We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
   (i)   Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
   (ii)   The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE.
 During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, 

etc. mentioned above.
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We further report that

 The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors 
and Independent Directors including one Woman Director. 

 The change in the composition of the Board of Director that took place during the period under review was carried out in 
compliance with the provision of the Act.

 Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings including Committees thereof, along with the agenda and 
detailed  notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and c larifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting by the 
directors. 

 Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

 We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the 
company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines referred to herein above.

 We further report that during the audit period the company has not incurred any specific event /action  that can have a major bearing 
on the company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc.        

For Ajit Jain & Co.
(Company Secretary)

                                                          
Ajit  Jain (Proprietor)

FCS M.No. 3933 
CP No. : 2876

                                                                      
 This report is to be read with   our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.

Annexure A to Secretarial Audit Report

To,
The Members, 
ARIHANT CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED
(CIN: L67120MP1992PLC007182)
E-5 Ratlam Kothi Area,
Indore (M.P.) 452001

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

 1.  Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

 2.  We  have  followed  the  audit  practices  and  processes  as  were  appropriate  to  obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the  contents of the Secretarial records.   The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts 
are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for 
our opinion. 

 3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.
 4.  Where  ever  required,  we  have  obtained  the  Management  representation  about  the compliance of laws, rules and 

regulations and happening of events etc.
 5.  The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of 

management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.
 6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.     
                                                                  

For Ajit Jain & Co.
(Company Secretary)

                                                          
Ajit  Jain (Proprietor)

M.No. 3933
CP No. : 2876

Date: 22/05/2018
Place: Indore 

Date: 22/05/2018
Place: Indore 
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Annexure-C
Annual Report on  CSR Activities

1. A brief Outline of the Company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs to be undertaken to the 
CSR policy and projects or programs.

 
 The CSR activities shall mean all the Corporate Social Responsibility activities/ programs/ initiatives of the company, either  o n g o i n g 

or new, dealing with the activities mentioned in thrust areas. The activities shall conform to those specified the CSR Committee and 
approved by the Board.

 CSR Policy of Arihant Capital Markets Limited is available on our website www.arihantcapital.com  

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee.

 Mr.  Ashok Kumar Jain :  Chairman of the Committee
 Mr.  Akhilesh Rathi : Member
 Mr. Pavan Kumar Ved : Member
 Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain : Member 

3. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years.

 The average Net Profit for the last three years is ̀  139.65 Lacs 

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above).

 The Company was required to spend ̀  27.93 Lacs towards CSR for the Financial Year 2017-2018.

5. Details of CSR spent during the Financial Y ear:

  a) Total amount to be spent for the Financial Year 2017-2018 :  ̀  27.93 Lacs
  b) Amount Spent :  ̀   12.50 Lacs (Including Amount Spent ̀  8.87 in FY 2015-16)
  c) Amount unspent :  ̀  24.30 Lacs (FY 2017-18)   
   Unspent amount to be spent in the future in prospects government project, health care, education etc.
  d) Manner in which the amount spent during the Financial Year:  Attached

6. In case the company has failed to spend the two percent of the average net profit of the last three year FinancialY ear 
or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reason for not spending the amount in its Board Report.

 Please refer to item no. 5(b) above.

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR policy, is in 
compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the company.

 We hereby declare that implementation and monitoring of the CSR policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the 
Company.

Ashok Kumar Jain                                                                                                                 
Chairman                                                                                        
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Annexure-D

FORM NO. AOC.1
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of 

subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Part "A": Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in `)

Sr. 
No.

 Particulars

 

1

 

2

 

3

 

4

 

5

 

6

 

7

 

8

 

1

 

Name of the 
subsidiary

 Arihant 
Financial 
Services 
Limited

 

Arihant 
Lifespace 
Infra 
Developers 
Limited

 

Arihant 
Futures & 
Commodities 

Limited

 

Arihant 
Insurance 
Broking 
Services 
Limited

 

Arihant 
Financial 
Planners & 
Advisors 
Private 
Limited

 

Arihant 
Housing 
Finance 
Corporation 
Limited

 

Ahinsa 
Lifespace 
Infraheight 
Limited

 

Arihant 
Capital 
(IFSC) 
Limited

 

2

 
Paid Up 
Share capital

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

3

 

Reserves & 
Surplus 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

4 Total assets 9,63,15,848
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

5
 

Total 
Liabilities

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

  
 

6
 

Investments  -        

7
 

Turnover
 

 
1,81,63,297

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

8
 

Profit before 
taxation

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 

9
 

Provision for 
taxation 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

10
 

Profit after 
taxation  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

11 Proposed 
Dividend 

        

12 % of 
shareholding 

25,00,000

6,06,92,805

 

9,63,15,848

-

 

67,13,198

15,83,578

51,29,620

-

100.00% 
 

45,00,000

11,10,24,367

44,51,83,177

44,51,83,177

1,24,20,821

2,60,791

49,636

2,11,155

-

100.00% 
 

35,50,000

12,94,12,212

41,07,93,268

41,07,93,268

-

6,68,15,283

92,88,266

25,80,708

67,07,558

-

100.00% 

75,00,000

11,45,979

86,96,275

86,96,275

-

6,67,262

1,84,871

47,748

1,37,123

-

100.00% 

25,00,000

12,79,710

39,07,676

39,07,676

-

19,27,395

10,20,702

2,69,097

7,51,605

-

100.00% 
 

2,50,00,000

31,64,640

2,82,38,111

2,82,38,111

-

23,55,498

8,82,176

2,47,126

6,35,050

-

100.00% 
 

1,90,00,000

-2,87,922

1,87,28,203

1,87,28,203

-

5,395

-16,610

14,838

-31,448

-

100.00% 
 

1,10,00,000

-4,28,665

1,11,42,255

1,11,42,255

-

37,969

-82,745

-

-82,745

-

100.00% 
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Management Discussion and Analysis Report
FY2017-18 :  A Glance 

 The global economic environment remained robust during FY 2017-2018, led by investment recovery, rebound in manufacturing & 
trade and an upswing in commodity prices. The momentum was driven by continued strong growth in emerging Asia, resurgence in 
European economy, tax cuts in the United States and improved spending in advanced economies.

 As per International Monetary Fund, the global economy grew at 3.8 per cent in 2018 from 3.2 per cent in 2017. The growth was 
broad-based and almost 75 per cent of the countries registered a growth. Even more important was the fact that some of the 
countries that had high unemployment, such as many in the Euro area participated in the growth surge and experienced strong 
employment growth. Wage growth however remained tepid in advanced economies despite falling unemployment rates. A lower 
wage growth led to controlled inflation which had a positive impact on the financial markets.

 The Indian economy, which accounts for over 70 per cent of South Asia's GDP expanded 7.4% in FY 2017-18 as compared to 7.6% in 
the previous year. Having recorded a Gross Domestic Product (GDP) of $2.6 trillion for 2017, India became the world's sixth largest 
economy, according to the database of the International Monetary Fund's World Economic Outlook (WEO) released in April 2018. 
IMF also estimated that the Indian economy would grow by 7.8 per cent in 2019, which makes India the world's fastest-growing 
economy.

 India's current account deficit widened sharply to USD 13.0 billion in the fourth quarter of 2017-18, or 1.9 percent of GDP, from USD 
2.6 billion, or 0.4 percent of GDP,  in the same period of the previous fiscal year. Trade deficit rose to 16.6 Bn $in June 18 as compared 
to 13 Bn $ in June 2017 owing to higher import bill due to rising oil prices.

 Sensex and Nifty delivered positive returns during the year. The large cap benchmark Nifty 50 rose 11.2% during the year at 10113 
stlevels as on 31  March 2018 while S&P BSE Sensex also rose by 13.9% closing the fiscal year at 32968 level. Domestic stock markets 

have also seen a correction triggers during the end of the financial year 2017 -2018 from the introduction of LTCG and profit booking 
by Investors.

Outlook for 2019 :  The right foundation for growth

 Global Economy 

 At the meeting of finance ministers and central bankers from the Group of 20 nations held on July 21-22, the G-20 financial leaders 
called for more dialogue on rising global trade tensions. They see several risks to global growth like rising financial vulnerabilities, 
heightened trade and geopolitical tensions, global imbalances, inequality and structurally weak growth, particularly in some advanced 
economies. Christine Lagarde, Managing Director of the IMF has warned that a wave of trade tariffs could significantly harm the global 
economy, lowering growth by about 0.5% “in the worst-case scenario.

 Indian Economic Highlights

rd India's rainfall deficit has shrunk to -2% by July 23 , 2018 and water level in critical reservoirs has improved by 25% (y-o-y). However, 
kharif (summer crop) sowing is still lagging behind the previous year by 12%. 

 India's GST Council has pruned the 28% slab by cutting tax rates on 191 goods over the last one year, leaving just 35 items in the 
highest tax bracket. The rate cuts would lead to a revenue loss of about Rs 60 billion to the national exchequer. This move combined 
with the victory of the ruling party against a no confidence vote in the Parliament has improved the sentiment for local equities, even 
as corporate earnings results for Q1, FY19 remain mixed. Higher crude oil prices, strengthening of dollar index and FPI outflows 
weigh on the G-Sec & INR sentiment.   

 The demand conditions are likely to improve going forward in 2019 on improving expectations of employment and spending with 
rural demand aided by stronger monsoon. The Union Budget for FY 2018-19 has substantially increased the minimum support prices 
for farm procurement. Additionally, the farm loan waivers rolled out in various states and the Central Government's push towards 
rural infrastructure improve rural consumption and decreasing the impact of GST transition.

Who we are and what we do

 Established as a stock broking company in 1992, we are today one of India's leading integrated financial services company. Initiated 
with the idea to make financial products and services easily understandable and accessible to all, the Company now offers equity, 
commodity and currency broking services, merchant banking services, distribution of financial products, financial planning, and 
depository services through its 610 investment centers across India servicing over 1.34 lac customers that includes retail, high net 
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worth individuals and domestic and foreign financial institutions. Here is a list of products and services offered by your Company:
Ÿ Equities and Derivatives Broking
Ÿ Commodities Broking
Ÿ Currency Derivatives Broking
Ÿ Merchant Banking (Category I)
Ÿ Priority Client Group
Ÿ Mutual Funds & IPO 
Ÿ Affordable housing 

 
 We derive majority of our revenues from our equity broking division. The Company conducts its operations along with its 

subsidiaries (together hereinafter referred to as  Arihant or the Company).

Review of Operations

 The Operations function at your Broking Company has designed to deliver a superior and differentiated customer experience. 
During the FY your company's consolidated income cross ̀ 100 Cr. i.e the total income stood at ̀ 102.44 Cr. and reported a profit 
after tax of ` 20.66 Cr. With the strong reforms, we are clear that all our efforts must converge into real value creation for all our 
stakeholders; we have demonstrated our ability to do so through the financial returns we have delivered.  

Your company continued to maintain a cautious stance on the expenditure reducing its expenses, wherever feasible.  The following 
table outlines company's expenditure:

Your Company's consolidated performance during the financial year 2017-2018 is as follows:

 During the year under review, the Company revamped its mobile trading application, Arihant Mobile to provide seamless trading 
experience to its clients with an improved UI/UX, real time market news and swipe to trade feature.  Trading and accessing client 
information via mobile devices is the future of the industry and all the players are betting big on mobile applications for driving larger 
chunk of their business volumes. 

 
 Your Company also introduced e-KYC facility for on boarding clients online eliminating the need for filling up cumbersome physical 

forms and documents. The main objective of e-KYC is to register the customer with least amount of paper work and in the shortest 
possible time.

Risk factors relating to our business operations

 The Company faces a variety of risks because of the business environment it operates in, which may affect its operations or financial 
results, and many of those risks are driven by factors that the Company cannot control or predict. Capital markets worldwide, 

  

Income from operations  

Other Income
 

Total Income
 

Total Expenditure

 

Profit before Tax  

Tax on Profit  

Net Profit for the period

 

Earnings Per Share (`)

 

 

9710.35 

534.06 

10244.41
 

7264.39

 

2980.03 

913.20 

2066.83

 

9.93

 

8296.41 

398.20 

8694.61
 

6189.31

 

2505.31 

836.80 

1668.51

 

8.01

 

Year ended March 31, 2017March 31, 2018 

             (` in lacs)

Cost of Sale  

Employees Cost  

Depreciation  
Administrative & Other Expenditure

Financial Cost
 

Total Expenditure

Year ended March 31, 2017March 31, 2018 

107.62

1397.87

99.15

4941.23

718.51

7264.38

53.96

1241.29

83.59

4472.24

338.22

6189.30

(` In Lacs)
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including the Indian capital markets, are exposed to significant fluctuations and hence, the company is exposed to several risks apart 
from the fundamental risk of business operations. Hence adequate risk management system has been put in place by the management 
to ensure the success and financial soundness of the company. However, despite the company's attempts to identify areas of potential 
risks and implement policies and procedures to mitigate those risks, there can be no assurance that the company will not suffer 
unexpected losses in its area of operations.

 The risk factors that can be specifically identified with our business operations are outlined below:

Ÿ Economic risk: The major sources of our revenues are derived from equity brokerage business. Hence, like other players in the 
market, our business is highly sensitive to economic and political conditions prevalent in the country and across the globe. Any 
sustained downturn in general economic conditions or Indian equity markets and severe market fluctuations would likely result in 
reduced client trading volumes and net revenues, and hence, will have a material adverse effect on our profitability.

Ÿ Technological risk plays a significant role in our industry:  The substantial amount of costs involved in deployment of 
technology is a critical factor.  Obsolesce is another major concern as upgradation of technology is an ongoing exercise.  Any 
significant changes in technology would pose pressure on our profitability.

Ÿ Market risk:  The Company aims to mitigate market risks by using investment policies, Investment committees, and requirement 
of investment justifications and regular monitoring of performance.

Ÿ Reputation Risk:  Over the years, the company pays special attention to issues that may create a reputational risk. Events that 
can negatively impact the organisation position are handled cautiously ensuring utmost compliance with relevant laws.

Ÿ Credit risk:  We provide exposure limits to clients, based on the collaterals of securities that we receive from them, in 
connection with our brokerage business. Sharp change in market values of securities and the failure by parties to honour their 
commitments on a timely basis could have a material adverse effect on the profitability of our operations.

Ÿ We are subject to various legal actions filed against us by interested parties: In our ordinary course of business, 
investors, trading members or any other third party may institute complaints, arbitration proceedings, lawsuits or other actions 
against us. Accordingly, in some cases fines, penalties or other repercussions would be borne by us that could materially affect our 
results of operations or cash flows.

Ÿ Regulatory uncertainties or failure to comply with any regulatory authority could affect our business: The 
financial services industry is subject to extensive regulations covering all aspects of the business. Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (SEBI), National Stock Exchange (NSE), the Bombay Stock Exchange of Mumbai (BSE), Reserve Bank of India (RBI), 
Association of Mutual Funds in India (AMFI), National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL), Central Depository Services (India) 
Limited (CDSL), Real Estate Regulatory Authority (RERA), Central Government, State Government and other regulatory bodies 
can, among other things, impose fine, penalties, suspend our business or exercise other such powers in their jurisdiction, which 
could potentially harm our business operations.  

Human Resources

 The Company continues to lay emphasis on developing and facilitating optimum human performance. Performance management was 
the key word for the Company this year. Recruitment process has been strengthened to ensure higher competence levels.

 The enthusiasm of staff members continued to be high in sustaining positive growth of disbursement and in maintaining healthy 
recoveries. With the high level of commitment and loyalty by staff members, Arihant capital Markets Limited is confident to face the 
challenges of the tougher market conditions.

 Our employees are among our best assets and indispensable for our continued success. We expect to continue investing in hiring 
talent and providing competitive compensation programmes to our employees. Competition for qualified personnel in our Company 
is intense, so our compensation and rewards philosophy has been designed to be competitive with bias for high performance. This 
helps us in two ways – employees strive to earn more and thus perform and we tend to attract high performers from the market who 
are ready to walk an extra mile with us. 

 Our Company continued to emphasise on improving and upgrading the skills of its employees and conducted several training 
programs in this regard. Moreover, in line with the Company's staff certification policy, employees are mandatorily required to take 
relevant industry standard certifications such as National Institute of Securities Markets (NISM), Association of Mutual Funds of India 
(AMFI), Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) and Chartered Financial Planner (CFP). Most of the Company's employees are qualified 
professionals (CA, CS, MBAs) or have obtained such certifications.

 All major festivals such as Navratri, Dussehra, Diwali, Christmas, New Year and Holi are celebrated across the Group with great 
enthusiasm.
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Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

 As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its 
average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas 
for CSR activities are eradication of hunger and malnutrition, promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and 
rehabilitation, environment sustainability, disaster relief and rural development projects.

 The CSR Policy may be accessed on the Company Website at the link :  http://www.arihantcapital.com 

 The key philosophy of the Company 'CSR initiatives' is to promote development through social and economic transformation.
  The Company has, interalia, identified following areas in which it may engage for its CSR activities.

Ÿ Addressing identified needs of the underprivileged through initiative directed towards promoting education including preventive 
health care.

Ÿ Any other activity falling within the scope of schedule VII to the Act.

 During the year,  the Company has spent ̀ 12.50 Lacs on CSR activities.

 The details of CSR activities are a part of Board Report.

Internal Control System 

 Company has an adequate system of internal control in place which has been designed to provide a reasonable assurance with regard 
to maintaining of proper accounting controls, monitoring of operations, protecting assets from unauthorized use or losses, 
compliance with regulations and for ensuring reliability of financial reporting. 

 The Company continuously upgrades its systems in line with the best availability practices. These systems are supported by periodical 
reviews by the management and standard policies and guidelines to ensure that financial and other records are prepared accurately.

Risk management

 Company has formulated a risk management framework which lays the procedure for risk assessment and mitigations. The Risk 
management Committee (RMC) has been constituted by the Board of Director of the Company, comprising functional executive 
/experts to identify, monitor and report on the potential risk associated with the Company 'business and periodically keeps the Audit 
Committee and the Board of Director apprised by of such risk and the measure taken by the Company to mitigate  them.

 Risk exposure is monitored and controlled through a variety of separate but complementary financial, credit, operational, compliance 
and legal reporting systems. Risk management department analyses this data in conjunction with the company's risk management 
policies and takes appropriate action where necessary to minimize risk.

The Environment

 At Arihant, we follow environment friendly practices in order to leave as less environmental footprint as possible. We endeavour to 
pursue a 'paperless' work environment for employees. This reduces costs, saves trees and increases productivity by eliminating 
manual tasks, decreasing printing costs and streamlining workflow.

 
 We also encourage our clients to go paperless by signing up for electronic trade confirmations (e-contract notes), account 

statements and bills. Not only is this good for the environment, but it enables clients to receive important information electronically – 
even if they're away from home.

Commitment to doing what is right

 Our top management team and Board of Directors are resolved to do what, we believe, is best for our associates, clients and 
shareholders.

Opportunities and  Threats

Opportunities

Ÿ Commitment to superior quality and process execution.
Ÿ Increasing Financial Services industry's share of wallet for disposable income.

http://www.arihantcapital.com
http://www.arihantcapital.com
http://www.arihantcapital.com
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Ÿ Leadership in sophisticated solutions that enable our clients to optimize the efficiency of their business. 
Ÿ Leveraging technology to enable best practices and processes.
Ÿ Corporates looking at consolidation / acquisitions / restructuring opens out opportunities for the corporate advisory business.

Threats 

Ÿ Execution risk.
Ÿ Short term economic slowdown impacting investor sentiments and business activities. 
Ÿ Slowdown in global liquidity flows. 
Ÿ Increased intensity of competition  from local and global players.
Ÿ Market trends making other assets relatively attractive as investment avenues.

Strength

 'Arihant Capital Markets Limited' is a well-established brand among brokers in India.  ACML have experienced top management team 
with a successful track record. It has established leadership in franchisee Business. The company's relationship with the franchisees 
has become stronger as they grew.  ACML has multiple business partner models in franchising and is strongly committed to enhance 
growth and profitability of each of its franchisee. It believes that its understanding of equity as a class asset and business fundamental 
drives the quality of research and differentiates from its competitors.

Strategy

 We intend to capitalize on the growth and consolidation of the brokerage industry and leverage our infrastructure to grow our 
market share and profitability. To achieve these goals, we seek to keep ourselves in sync with the growing dynamics of the industry on 
technology front, expand our network particularly in markets where the competition is not intense and potential is high. We seek to 
further strengthen our position by increasing our relevance to clients by being able to understand their investment requirement and 
offer them a solution that best meet their needs (client centric approach).

 Our strategic objective is to build a sustainable organization that remains relevant to the agenda of our clients, while creating growth 
opportunities for our employees and generating profitable returns for our investors

Compliance 

 The Compliance function of the Company is responsible for independently ensuring that operating and business units comply with 
regulatory and internal guidelines. The Compliance department of the Company is continued to play a pivotal role in ensuring 
implementation of compliance functions in accordance with the directives issued by regulators, the Company's Board of Directors 
and the Company's Compliance Policy. The Audit Committee of the Board reviews the performance of the Compliance Department 
and the status of compliance with regulatory / internal guidelines on a periodic basis. New instructions/ guidelines issued by the 
regulatory authorities were disseminated across the Company to ensure that the business and the functional units operate within the 
boundaries set by regulators and that compliance risks are suitably monitored and mitigated in their course of their activities and 
processes. New products and process launched during the year were subjected to scrutiny from compliance standpoint and 
proposals of financial services were screened from risk control prospective. The Company has complied with all requirements of 
regulatory authorities. No penalties / strictures were imposed on the Company by the stock exchanges or SEBI or any statutory 
authority on any matter related to capital market during the year.

Outlook and challenges

 The continual growth in the Finance sector is expected to give the necessary support to the Finance industry. The Company is making 
all efforts to accelerate growth of its business. It expects to improve its position in the market by focusing on technologically 
advanced and more profitable products/market segments. However, the challenges remain on being able to leverage these initiatives 
to carve out a space in the competitive broking industry and be able to take Company to the masses efficiently and at optimal cost.  

Cautionary Statement

 Certain statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's objectives, predictions may be “forward 
looking statements” within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may vary significantly from the forward 
looking statements contained in this document due to various risks and uncertainties. These risks and uncertainties include the effect 
of economic and political conditions in India, volatility in interest rates, new regulations and government policies that may impact the 
Company's business as well as its ability to implement the strategy. The Company does not undertake to update these statements. 
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Report on Corporate Governance

 In accordance with the provision of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) regulation, 2015 
(Listing Regulation) the report containing the details of Corporate Governance systems and processes at Arihant 
Capital Markets Limited is as follows:

1)  Company's philosophy on corporate governance

 Corporate Governance at  Arihant Capital Markets Limited has been a continuous journey and the business goals of the Company 
are aimed at the overall well being and welfare of all the constituents of the system. The Company firmly believes and has consistently 
practiced good Corporate Governance.  

 The Company's policy is reflected by the very values of transparency, professionalism and accountability. Arihant Capital Markets 
Limited constantly strives towards betterment and these aspects and thereby perpetuate in into generating long term economic 
value for its Shareholders, customer, employees other associated persons and the society as a whole.

  
 Your Company confirms the compliance of Corporate Governance as contained in Chapter IV of the Securities and Exchange Board 

of India ( Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) regulations,  2015 (SEBI LODR Regulation )” as amended , the details of 
which are given below: 

2)  Board of Directors 

 a) Composition and Category of the Board
  The Board, comprising of eminent professionals with expertise across a wide spectrum of domains, ensures business 

decisions which enhance long term interest of all stakeholder. The Company has the policy to have an appropriate mix of 
executive, non executive and independent directors to maintain the independence of the Board. On March 31, 2018 the Board 
consists of 7 (seven) Directors out of which 2 (two) are executive directors, 3 (Three) are independent directors and 2 (Two) 
are non executive directors. 

  During the financial year 2017-18 Mr.  Ashish Maheshwari has appointed as an  Additional Independent Director. 

  The composition of the Board and details of the Board of Directors and their directorships/memberships held in committees 
stof other companies as on 31  March, 2018 is as under:

                        

 * Founder member of the Board

Ÿ   The independent directors have confirmed that they satisfy the criteria laid down for independent directors as stipulated 

S. 

No.
Name of the Director

 

DIN

 

Position

 No. of 

directorship(s) 

held in other 

companies

 

No. of outside

committee position 

held

 

Member

 
Chairman

1. Mr.  Ashok Kumar Jain*
 

00184729
 

 
Chairman & Managing  

Director
 6*

 
Nil

 
Nil

2. Mrs. Anita Surendra 
Gandhi 02864338

 

 
Whole -time Director Nil Nil  Nil

3. Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain 00184860 

 

Non-executive 

Director 
Nil Nil  Nil

4. Mr.  Akhilesh Rathi 02002322 

 

Non-executive 

Director 
3 Nil  Nil

5. Mr. Pavan Kumar Ved 02055767 
Non -
 

executive 

 
Director

 

Nil
 

Nil
 

Nil

6. Mr. Parag Rameshbhai 
Shah 

 

00512469
 

 

Non -
 

executive 

Independent
 

Director
 

Nil

 

Nil

 

Nil

7. Mr.  Ashish Maheshwari 00185949
-Non executive 

Independent Director
Nil Nil Nil



with Companies Act, 2013 and “SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015”.

Ÿ Other than Mr.  Ashok Kumar Jain and Mr.  Sunil Kumar Jain who are related as brothers, none of the directors are related 
to one another. 

Ÿ Other directorships do not include alternate directorships, directorships of private limited companies, of companies 
registered under section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 and of companies incorporated outside India.

Ÿ Chairmanship/Membership of board committees includes chairmanship/membership of audit committee and 
stakeholders' relationship committee only. The membership/chairmanship of board committee of private limited 
companies, foreign companies and companies registered under section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 are excluded for the 
aforesaid purpose. 

 b) Board meetings held during the year

st  Four Board meetings were held during the year ended 31  March 2018. These were held on 27-May-2017, 09-September -
2017, 24-November-2017,  and 03-February-2018. 

  The details of director's attendance at board meetings held during financial year 2017-18 and at the last Annual General 
Meeting are as under:

th *Mr. Shailesh Kumath resigned on 14  June, 2017.

  The Company provides the information as set out in Regulation 17 (7) [Part A of Schedule II] of “SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015” to the Board and the Board committees to the extent it is applicable and relevant, such information is submitted either 
as part of the agenda papers in advance of the respective meetings or by way of presentations and discussions during the 
meeting.

  The Important decisions taken at the Board or Committee meetings are communicated to the concerned departments.

Committees of the Board

  To enable better and more focused attention on the affairs of the Company, the board delegates particular matters to 
committees of the directors set up for the purpose. Each committee of the Board is guided by its charter, which defines the 
scope, powers and composition of the Committee. During the financial year, the board is assisted by various committees:

  i) Audit Committee
  ii) Stakeholders Relationship Committee
  iii) Remuneration and Nomination Committee
  iv) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

3)  Audit committee

 The Audit Committee is constituted in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 18 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and 
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S. No. Name of the Director               
No. of Board Meetings Whether attended the 

last AGM Held Attended 

1 . Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain 4 4 

2 . Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain 4            3 

3 . Mr. Akhilesh Rathi 4 3 

4 .
 

Mrs. Anita Surendra Gandhi
 

4
 

4
 

5 .
 

Mr. Paragbhai Rameshbhai Shah
 

4
 

2
 

6 .
 

Mr. Pavan Kumar Ved
 

4
 

4
 

7 .
 

Mr. Shailesh Kumath*
 

1
 

1
 

8.
 

Mr. Ashish Maheshwari
 

4
 

3
 

Yes  

Yes 

Yes 

No
 

No
 

YES
 
N.A.
 

No
 



Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Audit Committee of Arihant consists of three members, viz., Mr.  Akhilesh Rathi, Mr.  
Sunil Kumar Jain and Mr. Parag Rameshbhai Shah. The chairman of the Committee is Mr.  Akhilesh Rathi, and Mr.  Mahesh Pancholi acts 
as the Secretary to the Committee. In case of absence of Chairman in the meeting, Mr. Parag Rameshbhai Shah shall act as chairman of 
the meeting. 

 The Audit Committee monitors and supervises the Management's financial reporting process, to ensure accurate and timely 
disclosures with highest levels of transparency, integrity and quality of financial reporting.

         
 The Committee held Four (4) meetings during the financial year 2017-18, on 27-May-2017, 09-September -2017, 22-November-2017, 

and 03-Feb-2018. The table below provides the attendance of the Audit Committee members:

4)  Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee determines and recommends to the Board the compensation payable to the 
directors. The remuneration committee consists of four non–executive directors as members, viz., Mr.  Akhilesh Rathi, Mr. Sunil 
Kumar Jain and Mr.  Parag Rameshbhai Shah and Mr.  Pavan Kumar Ved. Mr. Mahesh Pancholi acts as the secretary and Mr.  Akhilesh 
Rathi is the chairman of the committee. In case of absence of Chairman in the meeting, Mr. Pavan Kumar Ved Shah shall act as chairman 
of the meeting. The Committee's composition meets with requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 
19 (Chapter IV) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. One meetings of the committee was held during the financial year 2017-18.

 The terms of reference of remuneration committee include deciding Company's policies on specific remuneration packages for all 
the directors, designing and implementation of performance appraisal systems and discretionary performance bonus payments for 
them and such other functions as may be delegated to it by the Board of Directors.

 The attendance of each member at the Committee Meeting is as given below:

 Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend the respective meetings.

5)  Remuneration of Directors

 All the non-executive directors receive remuneration only by way of sitting fees for attending meeting of the board/committee. The 
details of the remuneration paid to chairman and managing director and whole-time director during the year is as under:
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S. No. Name of the Director Position 
No. of Meetings  

Held Attended

1. Mr. Akhilesh Rathi  Chairman 4 4

2. Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain  Member 4 4

3 . Mr. Parag Rameshbhai Shah  Member 4 2

S. No.  Name of the Director   Position  
No. of Meetings

Held Attended

1.
 

Mr. Akhilesh Rathi
 

Chairman
 

1
 

1  

2.
 

Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain
 

Member
 

1
 

1
 

3 .
 

Mr. Parag Rameshbhai Shah
 

Member
 

1
 

1
 

4. Mr. Pavan Kumar Ved Member 1 1

S. 

No. 
Name of the Director

 
Salary  Perquisite

 
Commission

 
Total

 

1.  Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain  48,00,000  84,029
 1,25,00,000 1,73,84,029

2. Mrs. Anita S. Gandhi  32,36,800  -  -  32,36,800

(Amount in ` )
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 Sitting fees and shares held by non-executive & Independent Directors 

th *Mr. Shailesh Kumath resigned on 14  June, 2017.

6)  Stakeholders Relationship Committee

 The Stakeholders Relationship committee comprising of four members, viz. Mr.  Akhilesh Rathi, Mr.  Ashok Kumar Jain Mr.  Sunil 
Kumar Jain and Mr.  Pavan Kumar Ved, looks into redressal of shareholder/investor complaints like non-transfer of shares, non-receipt 
of balance-sheet, non-receipt of dividend, etc. Mr.  Akhilesh Rathi is the chairman of the committee while Mr. Mahesh Pancholi, the 
compliance officer of the Company, acts as the secretary to the committee. In case of absence of Chairman in the meeting, Mr. Pavan 
Kumar Ved Shah shall act as chairman of the meeting. 

 The term of reference of the Committee is as follows: 
 1. To review the reports submitted by the registrars and Share Transfer Agents of the Company at Quarterly Intervals.
 2. To periodically interact with the Registrars and Share Transfer Agent to ascertain and look into the quality of the Company 

Shareholder / investor grievance redressal system and to review the report on the functioning of the Investor grievances 
redressal system.

 3. To follow up on the implementation of suggestion for improvement, if any.
 4. To periodically report to the Board about serious concern if any.
 5. To consider and resolve the grievances of the security holders of the Company.

 The attendance of each member at the Committee Meeting is as given below:

 The Committee held Four (4) meetings during the financial year 2017-18, on 27-May-2017, 09-September -2017, 22-November-2017, 
and 03-Feb-2018. During the meeting all queries like non-receipt of annual reports, dividend, transfer of shares, new share certificates, 
change of address etc., were resolved to the satisfaction of the shareholders. Stakeholders are requested to furnish their telephone 
no. and e-mail addresses to facilitate prompt action. During the year company had received total 20 complaints and resolved them. 
There were no complaints outstanding as on March 31, 2018.

 The Committee's Composition meets with the requirements of Section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 20 (Chapter 
IV) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

7) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

 The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board is constituted in compliance with the provisions of Section 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.  The Annual report on CSR activities, 
as per the prescribed format, forms part of the Board report.

 The broad functions of the committee are as under :
Ÿ Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy;
Ÿ Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on CSR activities;

S. No.  Name of the Director  No. of Equ ity Shares  Sitting fees    

1.  Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain  1606656  80000  
2.  Mr. Akhilesh Rathi  39847  80000  
3.

 
Mr. Parag Rameshbhai Shah

 
0

 
40000

 
4.

 
Mr. Pavan Kumar Ved

 
0

 
80000

 
5.

 
Mr. Shailesh Kumath*

 
0

 
20000

 
6. Mr. Ashish Maheshwari 0 60000

(Amount in ` )

 

  

  

  

S. No. Name of the Director Position  
No. of Meetings

Held  Attended

1. Mr. Akhilesh Rathi  Chairman  4  4

2. Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain
 

Member
 

4
 

4

3 .
 

Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain
 

Member
 

4
 

4

4. Mr. Pavan Kumar Ved Member 4 3
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Ÿ Review performance of the Company in the areas of CSR; and
Ÿ Monitor CSR policy from time to time. 

Composition and Meetings 

 The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee comprises of four Directors, viz. Mr.  Ashok Kumar Jain, Mr.  Akhilesh Rathi, 
Mr. Pavan Kumar Ved, and Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain. Mr.  Ashok Kumar Jain is the Chairman of the committee while Mr. Mahesh Pancholi, the 
compliance officer of the Company, acts as the secretary to the committee. The Committee held one (1) meeting during the financial 
year 2017-18, on 03-Feb-2018. The necessary quorum was present for the meeting.

 The attendance of member at the Committee Meeting is as given below:

8) General body meetings

 Details of the Annual General Meetings held in the last three years are as under:
 

Special resolution/ Postal ballot

 In the Last AGM dated 09th of September, 2017 of our Company has passed 2 special resolutions in the meeting. During the year 
under review, there was no special resolution that passed through postal ballot. 

9) General shareholder information: 

 Details required to be provided in this segment is presenting by us as a Separate Section “General Shareholder Information” on page 
number 38 in the Annual Report.

10) Means of Communication

 The quarterly, half-yearly and annual results of the Company are put up on the Company's website(www.arihantcapital.com) and are 
being published in English (Free Press) and Hindi language (Chotha Sansar). The auditors observations/suggestions/qualifications, if 
any, have been adequately explained wherever necessary in the appropriate notes to accounts and are self explanatory. 

11) Other Disclosures
  i. The Company does not have any material related parties transactions which have potential conflict with the interest of 

the Company at large. Transactions with related parties are disclosed in Note No. 24 of the annual accounts of the 
Company forming part of the annual report.

  ii. There were no instances of non-compliance on any matter related to the capital markets, resulting in disciplinary action 
against the Company, during the last three years. 

  iii. The Company has implemented the mandatory requirements of corporate governance as set out in the listing agreement 
with stock exchanges. In respect of compliance with the non-mandatory requirements, the Company has constituted a 
Nomination and remuneration committee, details where of are given under the heading of Nomination and remuneration 
committee. 

Financial Year

 

Venue  Date  Time

2014-2015

 

Hotel Sayaji, H/1, Scheme No. 54, Vijay Nagar, Indore (MP)

 

08/08/2015 12:30 P.M.

2015-2016  Hotel President, R.N.T. Marg, Indore (MP)  17/09/2016

2016-2017 Hotel Lemon Tree, R.N.T. Marg, Indore (MP) 09/09/2017

  12:30 P.M.

12:30 P.M.

 

  

  

  

     

2.  Mr.  Akhilesh Rathi  Member  1  1  

 

1. Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain Chairman 1 1

3 . Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain  Member  1  1  

4. Mr. Pavan Kumar Ved Member 1 1

S. No.  Name of the Director  Position  No. of Meetings

Held Attended



  iv. The Board of Directors has approved the vigil mechanism/Whistle blower policy of the Company which provides a 
framework to promote a responsible and secure whistle blowing. It protects employees wishing to raise a concern about 
serious irregularities within the Company. It provides for a vigil mechanism to channelize reporting of such instances/ 
complaints/ grievances to ensure proper governance. The Audit Committee oversees the vigil mechanism.

12) Management discussion and analysis report

 Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms a part of the Annual Report.

13) Code for prevention of insider-trading practices

 The Company has instituted a comprehensive code for prevention of Insider Trading, for its directors and designated employees, in 
compliance with SEBI (Prohibition of insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time.

14) Code of conduct for directors and senior management

 The Company has a duly approved Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company 
in place in terms of the requirements of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The Code is applicable to all board members and senior 
management personnel one level below the executive directors including all functional heads. The Code requires the Directors and 
employees to act honestly, ethically and with integrity and in a professional and respectful manner. The code of conduct is available on 
the website of the Company www.arihantcapital.com.

 Requisite annual affirmations of compliance with respective codes have been made by the directors and senior management of the 
Company. A declaration signed by the Chairman & Managing Director to this effect is enclosed at the end of this report.

15) CEO / CFO certification

 As required under Regulation 17 (8) and Regulation 33 (2) (a) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 with the BSE, the CEO/CFO 
certificate for the financial year 2017-18 signed by Mr.  Ashok Kumar Jain, Managing Director & CEO and Mr. Tarun Goyal, CFO was 

thplaced before the Board of Directors at their meeting held on 28  May, 2018.
            
16) Subsidiary Companies

 The company does not have any material subsidiary as defined under as per the provisions of Regulation 16 (c) of the SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015.  The Audit Committee reviews the consolidated financial statements of the Company and the investment made by 
its unlisted subsidiary companies. The minutes of the board meetings along with a report on significant developments of the unlisted 
subsidiary companies are periodically placed before the Board of Directors of the Company.

17)  Compliance certificate

 Certificate from the practicing company secretary confirming the compliance with all the conditions of corporate governance as 
stipulated in Schedule V (E) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015 is enclosed along with this report.

18)  Declaration Affirming Compliance of Code of Conduct 

 As provided under Regulation 26(3) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the Board Members and senior management personnel have confirmed compliance with the code of conduct for 

stthe year ended March 31 , 2018.

For Arihant Capital Markets Ltd

Ashok Kumar Jain 
Chairman and Managing Director 

Place: Indore
Date: 11/08 /2018  

Arihant Capital Markets Ltd.
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GENERAL SHAREHOLDER'S INFORMATION

th th
1. Date and Time of 26  AGM September 25 , 2018, 12:30 P.M.

2. Venue of Annual General Meeting (AGM) Lemon Tree Hotel
    3, RNT Marg, Indore 452001 (M.P.)

3. Date(s) of Book Closure 19.09.2018 to 25.09.2018 (both days inclusive)

4. Financial Calendar
Financial Results for* -

thQuarter ending June 30 , 2018 Second week of August, 2018
thQuarter ending September 30 , 2018 Second week of November, 2018
stQuarter ending December 31 , 2018 Second week of February, 2019

st
Year ending March 31 , 2019 Last week of May, 2019

 *tentative dates 

st st
5. Financial Year 1  April to 31  March

th6. Dividend Payment Date On or after 30  September, 2018 

7. Listing of Equity Shares on the Stock Exchange at The BSE Limited
    P.J. Towers, Dalal Street,
    Mumbai-400001 
    The Annual Listing Fees as applicable have been paid.

8. CIN of the Company L67120MP1992PLC007182

9. Security Code  511605

10. ISIN    INE420B01028

11. Stock Market Data: Monthly high and low stock price along with volumes
    of equity shares traded on BSE for the FY2017-18 is
    given below:

Month

April 2017

May 2017

June 2017

July 2017

August 2017

September 2017

October 2017

November 2017

December 2017

January 2018

February 2018

March 2018

High  

(`)
 

 

 

76.80
  

70.00

  

84.50

  

102.80

  

121.00

  

176.40

  

192.00

  

204.50

  

178.90

  

183.90

  

170.00

  

129.80

  

Low 

(`)

56.00
 

56.20

 

57.65

 

74.15

 

76.00

 

117.00

 

141.00

 

160.00

 

155.00

 

160.80

 

125.20

 

100.05

 

Volume

(No)

1,56,332

1,80,270

3,33,234

8,33,852

4,34,113

16,50,094

7,74,407

8,38,272

3,27,516

4,30,045

2,59,161

3,67,708
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Shareholding of 

Nominal Value of
 

`           
          

`
 

Share
holders 

No.

 

 

% of  Total 
Share 

holders

 

 

Share 
Amount in 

`
 

% of  Total 
Equity

 

 

UPTO
 

1000
 

3005
 

53.81
 

1163020
 

1.12
 

1001

 

2000

 

826

 

14.79

 

1250555

 

1.20

 

2001

 

3000

 

354

 

6.34

 

891925

 

0.86

 

3001

 

4000

 

579

 

10.37

 

1898850

 

1.82

 

4001

 

5000

 

234

 

4.19

 

1124670

 

1.08

 

5001

 

10000

 

288

 

5.16

 

2121585

 

2.04

 

10001

 

20000

 

137

 

2.45

 

2044650

 

1.96

 

20001

 

30000

 

59

 

1.06

 

1471645

 

1.41

 

30001

 

40000

 

29

 

0.52

 

978340

 

0.94

 

40001

 

50000

 

14

 

0.25

 

627505

 

0.60

 

50001

 

100000

 

22

 

0.39

 

1527960

 

1.47

 

100000

 

ABOVE

 

37

 

0.66

 

89012095

 

985.50

 

Total

 

5584

 

100.00

 

104112800

 

100.00

 

 

st
12. Distribution schedule as on March 31 , 2018

13. Dematerialization of Shares About 98.02 per cent of Company's paid up
    equity share capital has been dematerialized

st    up to March 31 , 2018

14. Dematerialized at NSDL & CDS 20410696

 Physical  411864

15. Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2018:

Category                                     No. of Shares Held                                 %  of Shareholding 

Promoters & Promoters Group  15421052                                        74.06 

Mutual Funds &  Institutional Investors  NIL                                            NIL 

Corporate Bodies 484171 2.33 

Indian Public                  
 

4607653
 

22.13
 

 
NRI / OCB
 

295117
 

1.42
 

Others – Clearing Members
 

14567
 

0.07
 

TOTAL 20822560                                   
 

100.00
 

 

16. Share Transfer System & Dematerialization 
 
 Shares received for transfer in physical form are processed and the share certificates are returned within 7 days from the date of 

receipt, subject to documents being valid and complete in all respects. In case no response is received within 15 days of lodging the 
transfer request, the lodger should write to the Company or the registrar with the full details, so that necessary action can be taken to 
safeguard the interest of the investor. The Company also obtains a certificate of compliance with the share transfer and other related 
formalities within the stipulated time period, from a Practicing Company Secretary, as required under Regulation 40(9) of the SEBI 
Listing Regulations and files a copy of the same on half yearly basis with the Bombay Stock Exchange.

  A summary of all the transfers, transmissions, issue of duplicate share certificate requests, deletion requests, etc. are placed at every 
board meeting/ stakeholders Relationship Committee from time to time for their review.

 Shareholders who wish to get their physical shares dematerialized should approach to their Depository Participant (DP) where they 
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have a demat account. On receipt of demat request form (DRF) and share certificates by the Company/registrar, the 
dematerialization request is processed and the shares are, thereafter, credited in demat account of the shareholder. 

17. Investor Correspondence/Query 

 A. Investor Correspondence For transfer / dematerialization of shares, payment of
    dividend, for shares held in physical form and any
    other query relating to the shares of the Company
    please contact:
    Registrar and Share Transfer Agent:
    Ankit Consultancy Private Limited,
    Plot No. 60, Electronic Complex, Pardeshipura, Indore (M.P.)
    T. +91-731-2551745-46
    F. +91-731-4065798

  For shares held in demat form  to the depository participant
 
 B. Any other matters and unsolved complaints  Company Secretary
    Arihant Capital Markets Limited
    E-5 Ratlam Kothi, Indore - 452001, (M.P.)
    Telephone No. : 731- 4217261
    Fax No. : 731-4217199
    Email: mahesh.pancholi@arihantcapital.com
Notes: 

I. Annual listing fee for the Year 2018-19 has been paid to the BSE Limited, Mumbai.

II. Annual Custody Fee for the Year 2018-19 has been paid to NSDL and CDSL.

stIII. Distribution schedule and Shareholding Pattern as on March 31 , 2018.

IV. During the Financial Year 2017-18, the Company has credited ̀  3,47,588/- lying unpaid /unclaimed in the dividend account (2009-10) 
to the Investor Education & Protection Fund pursuant to Section 125(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company shall be 
transferring the unclaimed/unpaid dividend amount for the financial year 2010-11, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund in 
term of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

V. The Company has also uploaded the details of unpaid/unclaimed amounts lying with the company as on September 9, 2017 (date of 
last Annual General Meeting) on the MCA website under the provision of IEPF (uploading of information regarding unpaid and 
unclaimed amount lying with the companies) Rules, 2012.

VI. In term of Schedule V (F) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulation,2015 the Company has opened Unclaimed Suspense Account, namely 
“Arihant Capital Markets Ltd. - Unclaimed Suspense Account” and the unclaimed shares lying with the registrar of the Company have 
been dematerialized and credited to “Arihant Capital Markets Ltd. - Unclaimed Suspense Account”.  As per Schedule V (F) of the SEBI 
(LODR) Regulation,2015, the details of the shares in the Suspense Account are as follows:

st The voting rights on the shares in the suspense accounts as on March 31 , 2018 shall remain frozen till the rightful owners of such 
shares claim the shares.

Particulars  Number of 

Shareholders 

Number of 

equity shares 

Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares 
stin the suspense account lying as on April 1  , 2017  

187 155520 

Number of shareholders who approached the Company for transfer of shares 
and shares transferred from suspense account during the year

 

143 74000 

Number of shareholders and aggregate number of shares 
transferred to the Unclaimed Suspense account during the year 

 

0
 

0
 

Aggregate Number of shareholders and the outstanding 
stshares in the suspense account lying as on March 31  , 2018

 44
 

81520
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VII. Nomination: Individual shareholders holding shares singly or jointly in physical form can nominate a person in whose name the shares 
shall be transferable in case of death of the registered shareholder(s).Nomination facility in respect of shares held in electronic form 
is also available with the Depository Participants as per the bye-laws and business rules applicable to NSDL and CDSL. Nomination 
forms can be obtained from the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. 

VIII. Electronic Clearing Service: The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has made it mandatory for all companies to use the 
bank account details furnished by the depositories for depositing dividends. Dividend will be credited to the Member's bank account 
through NECS wherever complete core banking details are available with the company. In cases where the core banking details are 
not available, dividend warrants will be issued to the Members with bank details printed thereon as available in the Company's 
records. This ensures that the dividend warrants, even if lost or stolen, cannot be used for any purpose other than for depositing the 
money in the accounts specified on the dividend warrants and ensures safety for the investors. The Company complies with the SEBI 
requirement. NECS form is attached to the Notice, if not provided. 

IX. The Company's financial results and official press releases are displayed on the Company's website www.arihantcapital.com.

X. The financial statements, shareholding pattern, quarterly compliances and other relevant corporate communication are filed with 
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited electronically through BSE Listing Centre.  

XI. SEBI has mandated submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in the Securities Market. Members holding 
shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to furnish their PAN details to their DP, if not already provided. Members holding 
shares in physical form are required to mandatory submit the copy of their PAN, if not already provided to registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent.

XII. In case of loss /misplacement of share certificates, investors should immediately lodge a FIR/Complaint with the police and inform the 
Company /Registrar and Share Transfer Agent along with a copy of FIR /acknowledge copy of complaint.

XIII. We solicit suggestion for improving our investor services.
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CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To
The Members
Arihant Capital Markets Limited

We have examined the relevant records of Arihant Capital Markets Limited, for the purpose of certifying 

compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance for the year ended 31st March 2018, as stipulated 

in the SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015. (“Listing Regulation”). We have obtained all the information and 

explanation which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of certification. 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company's 

Management. Our examination has been limited to the procedures and implementation thereof adopted by 

the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated in 

the said Listing Regulations. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statement of 

the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on 

the representations made by the Directors and the Management, we certify that the Company has complied 

with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in applicable provisions of Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance to the further viability of the Company nor 

the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

           For Ajit Jain & Co.
Company Secretary

CS Ajit Jain
Proprietor

FCS: 3933 CP: 2876
Date: 21/05/2018
Place: Indore



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO,
THE MEMBERS 
ARIHANT CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of ARIHANT CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED ("the Company"), which 
st

comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31  March, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a 
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with 
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial  statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included 
in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require 
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the 
Company's preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the 
accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone 
financial statements. 

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 

staccounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31  March, 2018, and its profit and its cash flows 
for the year ended on that date. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 ("the order") issued by the Central Government of India in terms of 
sub-section (11) 143 of the act, we give in the Annexure "A", a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the 
Order, to the extent applicable.

Arihant Capital Markets Ltd.
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2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 
 (a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 

necessary for the purposes of our audit.
 (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 

examination of those books.
 (c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement 

with the books of account.
 (d) In our opinion the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, 

read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014  
st  (e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2018 taken on record by the Board 

stof Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31  March, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 
164 (2) of the Act.

 (f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial control over financial reporting of the company and the operating 
effectiveness of such control, refer to our separate report in Annexure "B"; and 

 (g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us:

  i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements as referred 
to in Note 28 to the Financial Statements.

  ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts; as such the question of commenting on 
any material foreseeable losses thereon does not arise.

  iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company.

For Dinesh Ajmera & Associates                                     
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No:011970C

CA Dinesh Ajmera
Partner

Membership No. : 402629
Indore, May 28, 2018
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ANNEXURE ''A" REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING OF "REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND 
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS" OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS OF ARIHANT CAPITAL 

ST
MARKETS  LIMITED ON  THE  ACCOUNTS FOR  THE Y EAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2018

1. a)  The Company has maintained proper records to show full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of its fixed 
assets.

 b) All fixed assets of the Company are physically verified by the management at regular intervals, which in our opinion, is 
reasonable considering the size of the Company and the nature of assets. During the year, as informed to us by management, 
no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification. 

 c) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

2. The securities held as stock in trade have been verified by the Management with the statement of holdings provided by depository 
participants and brokers at reasonable intervals. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable and no material 
discrepancies between the book records and the statement of holdings provided by NSDL, other depository participants and 
brokers have been noticed.

3. The Company has granted unsecured loan to one company covered in the register maintained under section 189 of  The Companies 
Act, 2013.

 
 (a) The rate of interest and other terms and conditions on which the loan had been granted to the body corporate listed in the 

register maintained under section 189 of the Act are not prejudicial to the interest of the company. 

 (b) There are no stipulations for the repayment schedule however the rate of interest is stipulated for the loan granted to the 
body corporate listed in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. The borrower is regular in the payment of 
principal and interest wherever stipulated.

 
 (c) As per records of the Company and according to the information and explanation given to us, no amount of principal and 

interest is overdue.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of 
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investment, guarantees and security.

5. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted deposits from public. 

6.      We are informed that maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central Government under section 148 of The 
Companies Act, 2013, in respect of the activities carried on by the Company

7.      a) As per the records of the Company, the company is regular in depositing the statutory dues including provident fund, income 
tax, service tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. According to the 
information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amount in respect of income tax, sales tax, service tax, custom duty, 
excise duty, cess applicable to it is outstanding as at the last day of the financial year concerned for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable.

 b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax, custom duty, 
excise duty, cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. 

 
 8.    The Company has not defaulted in payments of any dues to financial institutions, banks or debenture holders. The Company did not 

have any dues to financial institutions or debenture holder during the year.

 9. According to the information and explanation given to us and the record examined by us, the Company has not raised any money by 
way of initial public offer or further public offer. Hence, clause 3(ix) of the order is not applicable.

10.    Based upon the audit procedures performed and information and explanations given by the management, we report that no material 
fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered by our audit.

11. According to the information and explanation given to us and the record examined by us, the Company has provided managerial 
remuneration during the year in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with 
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Schedule V to the Companies Act. 

12. The Company is not Nidhi Company. Hence, clause 3(xii) of the order is not applicable.

13. According to the information and explanation given to us and the record examined by us, all the transactions with the related parties 
are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in financial 
statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14. According to the information and explanation given to us and the record examined by us, the company has not made any preferential 
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. 

15. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non cash transactions with 
directors or persons connected with him.

16. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.  

For Dinesh Ajmera & Associates                                     
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No:011970C

CA Dinesh Ajmera
Partner

Membership No. : 402629
Indore, May 28, 2018

ANNEXURE "B" AS REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 2(f) UNDER THE HEADING OF "REPORT ON LEGAL AND 
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS" OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS OF ARIHANT CAPITAL 

STMARKETS LIMITED ON THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2018
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Arihant Capital Market Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 
2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and 
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 



financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company;

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such 
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Dinesh Ajmera & Associates                                     
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No:011970C

CA Dinesh Ajmera
Partner

Membership No. : 402629
Indore, May 28, 2018

Arihant Capital Markets Ltd.

Annual Report Year 2017-2018 47



Annual Report Year 2017-201848

st
Standalone Balance sheet as at 31  March, 2018

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Financial Statements

As per our report of even date
For Dinesh Ajmera & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No:011970C

CA. Dinesh Ajmera
Partner
Membership No. : 402629

thIndore, 28  May, 2018

Ashok Kumar Jain
(Chairman & Managing 
Director)
DIN-00184729

For and on behalf of the Board

Anita S Gandhi
(Whole Time Director)
DIN-02864338

Mahesh Pancholi
(Company Secretary)

Tarun Goyal
(CFO)

EQUITY & LIABILITIES   

Shareholders' fund   

Share Capital 2 10,41,12,800 10,41,12,800

Reserves and Surplus 3 83,73,45,630 65,43,71,312

    94,14,58,430 75,84,84,112

    

Non-Current Liabilities   

Long Term Provisions 4 66,59,618 71,61,572

Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 5 56,61,453 40,27,846

    1,23,21,071 1,11,89,418

    

Current Liabilities   

Short-Term Borrowings 6 91,43,46,408 8,46,31,609

Trade Payables 7 41,43,75,701 40,00,72,369

Other Current Liabilities 8 17,98,42,395 14,11,73,486

Short-Term Provisions 9 28,73,446 17,24,890

    151,14,37,950 62,76,02,353

TOTAL   246,52,17,451 139,72,75,883

    

ASSETS   

Non-Current Assets   

Fixed Assets   

 Tangible Assets 10 9,39,66,605 8,02,66,435

Intangible Assets 10 69,60,709 21,59,823

Non-Current Investments 11 13,54,86,480 13,54,86,480

Other Non-Current Assets 12 1,70,85,000 1,70,85,000

    25,34,98,794 23,49,97,738

    

Current Assets   

Current Investments 13 2,64,06,390 14,99,93,060

Inventories 14 12,83,48,787 1,70,23,255

Trade Receivables 15 115,71,08,939 62,03,53,483

Cash and Cash Equivalents 16 75,23,54,357 21,41,60,314

Short-Term Loans and Advances 17 9,23,16,209 8,00,19,726

Other Current Assets 18 5,51,83,976 8,07,28,307

    221,17,18,658 116,22,78,145

TOTAL   246,52,17,451 139,72,75,883

Particulars Note No.
st

31  March,
 2018 `

st
31  March,

 2017 `

1 to 38



st
31  March,

 2018 `

Income   

I Revenue from Operations 19 91,25,69,172 75,39,80,867

II Other income 20 3,01,30,070 1,54,34,391

III Total Revenue (I+II)  94,26,99,242 76,94,15,257

    

IV Expenses   

 Employee benefits expenses 21 12,27,81,204 10,87,78,991

 Finance costs 22 6,68,53,069 2,53,72,703

 Other expenses 23 45,69,30,918 40,29,76,347

 Net depreciation and amortization expenses 10 92,81,962 75,78,633

 Total (IV)  65,58,47,152 54,47,06,674

V Profit Before Exceptional and Extraordinary Items and Tax (III-IV) 28,68,52,090 22,47,08,584

VI Exceptional items  0 0

VII Profit Before Extraordinary Items and Tax (V-VI)  28,68,52,090 22,47,08,584

VIII Extraordinary Items  0 0

IX Profit Before Tax (VII-VIII)  28,68,52,090 22,47,08,584

X Tax expenses   

  Current tax  8,48,93,400 7,49,78,492

  Deferred tax  16,33,607 6,26,862

 Total tax expenses  8,65,27,007 7,56,05,354

    

XI Profit/(loss) for the year  20,03,25,083 14,91,03,230

XII Earnings per Share  25  

 Equity Shares of `5 each   

     Basic   9.62 7.16

     Diluted  9.62 7.16

Particulars Note No.
st

31  March,
 2017 `

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Financial Statements

As per our report of even date
For Dinesh Ajmera & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No:011970C

CA. Dinesh Ajmera
Partner
Membership No. : 402629

thIndore, 28  May, 2018

Ashok Kumar Jain
(Chairman & Managing 
Director)
DIN-00184729

For and on behalf of the Board

Anita S Gandhi
(Whole Time Director)
DIN-02864338

Mahesh Pancholi
(Company Secretary)

Tarun Goyal
(CFO)

1 to 38

st
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended 31  March, 2018
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st
31  March,

 2018 `
Particulars Note No.

st
31  March,

 2017 `

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Financial Statements

As per our report of even date
For Dinesh Ajmera & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No:011970C

CA. Dinesh Ajmera
Partner
Membership No. : 402629

thIndore, 28  May, 2018

Ashok Kumar Jain
(Chairman & Managing 
Director)
DIN-00184729

For and on behalf of the Board

Anita S Gandhi
(Whole Time Director)
DIN-02864338

Mahesh Pancholi
(Company Secretary)

Tarun Goyal
(CFO)

1 to 38

st
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended  31  March, 2018

Cash flow from operating Activities   

Net profit before taxation  28,68,52,090 22,47,08,584

Add adjustments for :   

(Profit) / Loss on sale of fixed assets  -13,861 1,12,081

Provision for Loss on Option Contract                                  0 -23,82,765

Provision for Gratuity  6,46,602 12,30,790

Depreciation / amortisation  92,81,962 75,78,633

Dividend income  -1,11,68,335 -19,21,816

Operating profit before working capital changes  28,55,98,457 22,93,25,506

Adjustments for changes in working capital :   

- Trade and other receivables  -53,67,55,456 -36,78,87,645

- Inventories  -11,13,25,532 12,37,27,591

- Loans & advances  1,53,12,862 -9,54,22,495

- Trade and other payables  5,29,72,242 22,95,03,292

Cash generated from operation  -29,41,97,427 11,92,46,249

- Taxes paid (net)  -8,69,58,414 -7,58,50,566

Net cash from Operating Activities (A)  -38,11,55,840 4,33,95,683

Cash flow from Investing Activities   

(Purchase) / Sales of fixed assets  -2,77,69,157 -63,85,411

(Purchase) / Sales of investments  12,35,86,671 -16,22,12,560

Dividend received  1,11,68,335 19,21,816

Net cash used in Investing Activities(B)  10,69,85,849 -16,66,76,155

Cash flow from Financing Activities   

Dividend paid  -1,56,16,920 0

Dividend distribution tax paid  -17,33,845 0

Increase/ (Decrease) in secured loans  82,97,14,799 8,46,31,609

Net cash used in Financing Activities(C)  81,23,64,034 8,46,31,609

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  53,81,94,043 -3,86,48,862

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  21,41,60,314 25,28,09,177

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  75,23,54,357 21,41,60,314

   

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of   

Cash and cheques in hand  4,21,519 99,118

Balances with scheduled banks  75,19,32,839 21,40,61,196

Total  75,23,54,357 21,41,60,314



stNotes Forming Part of  Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended  31  March, 2018 

NOTE 1: STATEMENT ON SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

(i) (a)  BASIS OF PREPARATION
  The financial statements have been prepared to comply with applicable accounting principles in India, the Accounting 

Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
The accounts are prepared on historical cost basis and on the principle of going concern. Accounting policies not specifically 
referred to are in consonance with prudent and generally accepted accounting practices. The accounting policies have been 
consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

 (b)  USE OF ESTIMATES
  The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles which require the 

management of the company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and results of operations during the 
reporting periods. Although these estimates are based upon the management's best knowledge of current events & actions, 
actual results could differ from those estimates. Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the 
period in which the results are known / materialized.

(ii) REVENUE RECOGNITION

 a) Company recognizes Brokerage Income on accrual on the basis of the date of trade settlement, of respective stock 
exchanges.

 b) Other Income is accounted for on accrual basis.
 c) The Annual Maintenance Charges in respect of Account Holders of the Depository Division of the Group are accounted at 

the time of opening of account or completion of the year irrespective of the period they pertain to.
 d) Incentive on primary market subscription – mobilization is accounted on the basis of intimation received by the Company.

(iii) VALUATION OF INVENTORIES

 Securities shown as Inventories are valued scrip wise at Weighted Average Cost of the day or Market Value whichever is lower. Cost 
includes direct expenses.

(iv) FIXED  ASSETS

 Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost comprises the purchase price and all direct 
cost attributable to bring the asset to its working condition for intended use.

(v) DEPRECIATION

 Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight-line method over the useful lives of assets as mentioned and envisaged 
under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during a period is proportionately charged. 
Intangible assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated lives on a straight-line basis, commencing from the date 
the asset is available to the Company for its use.

(vi) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

 Impairment loss, if any, is provided to the extent the carrying amount of assets exceeds their recoverable amount. Recoverable 
amount is higher of an asset's net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows 
expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.

(vii) INVESTMENTS

 Investments are classified into current investments and non-current investments. Investments which are intended to be held for 
more than one year are classified as non-current investments and investments which are intended to be held for less than one year 
are classified as current investments. Investments are accounted at cost and any decline in the carrying value other than temporary 
in nature is provided for. 

Arihant Capital Markets Ltd.
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(viii) CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

 Cash comprises of cash in hand and balances with banks. Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily 
convertible into cash and which are subject to insignificant risks of changes in value.

(ix) FOREIGN EXCHANGE  TRANSACTIONS 

 (a)  Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction or 
that approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

 (b) Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are restated at year end rates. In case of items which are 
covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the year end rate and rate on the date of the contract is 
recognized as exchange difference and the premium paid on forward contracts is recognized over the life of the contract.

 (c)  Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is recognized in the Profit 
and Loss account except in case of long term liabilities, where they relate to acquisition of fixed assets, in which case they are 
adjusted to the carrying cost of such assets.

(x) EARNING PER SHARE

 The Company reports Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share in accordance with Accounting Standard –20, “Earning Per Share” issued 
by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Basic Earning Per Share is computed by dividing net profit after tax by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the period. Diluted Earning Per Share is computed using the weighted 
average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the period.

(xi) TAXATION

 a) Current corporate tax is provided on the results for the year after considering applicable tax rates and laws. 

 b) Deferred Tax is provided on timing differences between tax and accounting treatments that originate in one period and are 
expected to be reversed or settled in subsequent periods. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted / 
substantially enacted tax rates and laws for continuing operations. Deferred tax assets, in the event of unabsorbed 
depreciation and carry forward losses under tax laws, that exceed the deferred tax liability, are recognized only where there 
virtual certainty of realization. Deferred tax assets on other accounts are recognized only to the extent there is reasonable 
certainty of realization. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date to reassess 
realization.

 c) Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that 
the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to 
be recognized as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in Guidance Note issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the profit and loss account and shown as MAT 
Credit Entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT 
Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal 
Income Tax during the specified period.

(xii) RETIREMENT BENEFITS

 i. Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is wholly unfunded. The Company accounts for liability for future gratuity 
benefits based on actuarial assumptions.

 ii. Provident fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions as required by the statute are charged to the Profit and 
Loss Account as incurred.

(xiii) EQUITY INDEX/ STOCK FUTURES

 a) “Initial Margin – Equity Derivative Instrument”, representing the initial margin paid for entering into contracts for equity 
index/stock futures which are released on final settlement/squaring-up of underlying contracts, are disclosed under Other 
Current Assets.

 b) Equity index/stock futures for arbitrage purposes are marked-to-market on a daily basis. Debit or credit balance disclosed 
under Other Current Assets or Other Current Liabilities, respectively, in the “Mark-to-Market Margin – Equity Index/Stock 
Futures Account”, represents the net amount paid or received on the basis of movement in the prices of index/ stock futures 
till the Balance Sheet date. 
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 c) As on the Balance Sheet date, profit/loss on open positions in equity index/ stock futures is accounted for as follows: 
  1. Credit balance in the “Mark-to-Market Margin – Equity Index/Stock Futures Account”, being the anticipated profit, is 

ignored and no credit for the same is taken in the Profit and Loss Account. 
  2. Debit balance in the “Mark-to-Market Margin – Equity Index/Stock Futures Account”, being anticipated loss, is adjusted in 

the Profit and Loss Account. 
 d) On final settlement or squaring-up of contracts for equity index/stock futures, the profit or loss is calculated as the difference 

between the settlement/squaring-up price and the contract price. Accordingly, debit or credit balance pertaining to the 
settled/squared-up contract in “Mark-to-Market Margin – Equity Index/ Stock Futures Account” after adjustment of provision 
for anticipated losses is recognized in the Profit and Loss Account. 

 e) When more than one contract in respect of the relevant series of equity index/ stock futures contract to which the squared-
up contract pertains is outstanding at the time of the squaring-up of the contract, the contract price of the contract so 
squared-up is determined using the weighted average cost method for calculating the profit/loss on squaring-up. 

(xiv) EQUITY INDEX/ STOCK OPTIONS

 a) “Initial Margin Equity Derivative Instrument” representing the initial margin paid, and “Margin Deposit”, representing the 
additional margin paid over and above the initial margin, for entering into contracts for equity index/ stock options, which are 
released on final settlement/squaring-up of the underlying contracts, are disclosed under Other Current Assets.

 b) “Equity Index/Stock Option Premium Account” represents the premium paid or received for buying or selling the options, 
respectively. 

 c) As at the Balance Sheet date, in the case of long positions, provision is made for the amount by which the premium paid for 
those options exceeds the premium prevailing on the Balance Sheet date, and in the case of short positions, for the amount by 
which the premium prevailing on the Balance Sheet date exceeds the premium received for those options, and is reflected in 
“Provision for Loss on Equity Index/ Stock Option Account”.

 d) When the options are squared up before expiry of the options, the premium prevailing in "Equity Index/Stock Option 
Premium Account" on that date is recognized in the Profit and Loss Account. If more than one option contract in respect of 
the same index/stock with the same strike price and expiry date to which the squared-up contract pertains is outstanding at 
the time of squaring-up of the contract, the weighted average method is followed for determining the profit or loss. On the 
expiry of the contracts and on exercising the options, the difference between the final settlement price and the strike price is 
transferred to the Profit and Loss Account. In both the above cases, the premium paid or received for buying or selling the 
option, as the case may be, is recognized in the Profit and Loss Account for all squared-up/settled contracts.

(xv) PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

 Provisions are recognized for present obligations, of uncertain timing or amount, arising as a result of a past event where a reliable 
estimate can be made and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation. Where it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required or the amount 
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability unless the possibility of outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits is remote.

 
 Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 

events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the possibility of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is 
remote.
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st31  March,
 2018 `

Particulars
st31  March,
 2017 `

stNotes Forming Part Of Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended  31  March, 2018

2.  Share Capital  

 Authorised   

 2,50,00,000 (2,50,00,000) equity share of `5/- each  12,50,00,000   12,50,00,000 

  

 Issued, Subscribed & Paid up   

 2,08,22,560 (2,08,22,560) equity share of `5/- each  10,41,12,800   10,41,12,800 

 Total  10,41,12,800   10,41,12,800 

  

 a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at

 the end of the reporting period  

  

 Equity Shares of face value `5/-  

 Share outstanding at the beginning of the period  2,08,22,560 2,08,22,560

 Share outstanding at the end of period 2,08,22,560 2,08,22,560

  

 b.  Terms/rights attached to equity shares  

 The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of  ̀ 5 per share.

 Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed

 by  the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the

 ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event

 of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets

 of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to

 their shareholding. 

  

 c. List of the Shareholders holding more than 5% of the total number 

 of shares issued by the company  

 Name of the shareholders  

 Ashok Kumar Jain 60,63,040 (29.12%) 60,63,040 (29.12%)

 Kiran Jain 47,28,320 (22.71%) 47,28,320 (22.71%)

 Sunil Kumar Jain 16,06,656 (7.72%) 16,06,656 (7.72%)

 Arpit Jain 11,47,840 (5.51%) 11,47,840 (5.51%)

  

3.  Reserves and Surplus  

 General Reserve  

 Balance as per the last financial statements 56,03,42,139 48,03,42,139

 Add: Transfer from Profit & Loss 15,00,00,000 8,00,00,000

 Closing Balance 71,03,42,139 56,03,42,139

  

 Surplus/(deficit) in the statement of profit and loss  

 Balance as per last financial statements 9,40,29,172 2,49,25,942

 Profit for the year 20,03,25,083 14,91,03,230

 Less: Appropriations  

 Equity Dividend (Dividend per share `0.75) 1,56,16,920 0

 Dividend Distribution Tax 17,33,845 0

 Transfer to General Reserve 15,00,00,000 8,00,00,000

 Net surplus in the statement of Profit and Loss 12,70,03,490 9,40,29,172

 Total 83,73,45,630 65,43,71,312



st31  March,
 2018 `

Particulars
st31  March,
 2017 `

stNotes Forming Part Of Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended  31  March, 2018

4. Long Term Provisions

 Provision for Employee Benefits 66,59,618 71,61,572

 Total  66,59,618 71,61,572

5. Deferred Tax Liabilities/ (Assets)  

 Deferred Tax Liabilities  

 Related to Fixed Assets 96,67,109 75,56,291

 Total (a) 96,67,109 75,56,291

  

 Deferred Tax Assets  

 Disallowance under the Income Tax Act, 1961 40,05,656 35,28,445

 Total (b) 40,05,656 35,28,445

  

 Net Deferred Tax Liabilities /(Assets) [(a)-(b)] 56,61,453 40,27,846

  

6. Short Term Borrowings  

 Secured  

 From Bank* 91,43,46,408 8,46,31,609

 Total  91,43,46,408 8,46,31,609

  

 * Bank Overdraft are secured against pledge of securities, trade receivables 

 and property.  

  

7. Trade Payables  

 Sundry Creditors (Includes Trade Payables)  

 Other than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 41,43,75,701 40,00,72,369

 Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 0 0

 (Refer Note 30)  

 Total  41,43,75,701 40,00,72,369

  

8. Other Current Liabilities  

 Other Payables 7,89,47,576 7,87,16,339

 Unpaid Dividend # 23,07,865 23,35,786

 Deposits from Intermediateries & Others 9,85,86,953 6,01,21,361

 Total  17,98,42,395 14,11,73,486

  

# Out of the above amount, the company is required to credit a sum of `3,05,301/- 
stlying in the unpaid/unclaimed dividend account, on or before  31  October, 2018 to

the Investor Education & Protection Fund pursuant to Sub -section (1) 

of Section 125  of The Companies Act, 2013.  

  

9. Short-Term Provisions  

 Provision for Employee Benefits 28,73,446 17,24,890

 Total  28,73,446 17,24,890
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Tangible Assets          

Building 6,71,44,313 0 0 6,71,44,313 65,62,378 10,61,809 0 76,24,187 5,95,20,126 6,05,81,935

Furniture & Fixtures 2,43,74,895 19,09,747 7,51,943 2,55,32,699 1,66,63,808 13,17,993 7,51,243 1,72,30,557 83,02,142 77,11,087

Office Equipments 1,23,23,704 12,49,747 80,775 1,34,92,676 97,62,021 8,50,696 76,736 1,05,35,981 29,56,695 25,61,683

Computers  4,06,67,711 64,32,754 34,63,826 4,36,36,639 3,44,59,037 37,41,882 34,60,326 3,47,40,593 88,96,046 62,08,674

Electrical Installations 22,81,995 81,831 0 23,63,826 9,37,684 1,76,262 0 11,13,946 12,49,880 13,44,311

Motor Vehicles 56,89,076 1,27,60,760 0 1,84,49,836 38,30,331 15,77,788 0 54,08,120 1,30,41,716 18,58,745

Sub Total (A) 15,24,81,694 2,24,34,839 42,96,544 17,06,19,989 7,22,15,259 87,26,430 42,88,305 7,66,53,383 9,39,66,605 8,02,66,435

Intangible Assets           

Software 1,57,80,643 53,56,418 0 2,11,37,061 1,36,20,821 5,55,532 0 1,41,76,352 69,60,709 21,59,822          

Sub Total (B) 1,57,80,643 53,56,418 0 2,11,37,061 1,36,20,821 5,55,532 0 1,41,76,352 69,60,709 21,59,822          

Total (A+B) 16,82,62,337 2,77,91,257 42,96,544 19,17,57,050 8,58,36,080 92,81,962 42,88,305 9,08,29,736 10,09,27,314 8,24,26,257          

Previous year  16,24,92,452 65,07,136 7,37,251 16,82,62,337 7,87,60,891 75,78,633 5,03,444 8,58,36,080 8,24,26,257 8,37,31,561

PARTICULARS  

GROSS BLOCK     DEPRECIATION     NET BLOCK

As at
st1  April
2017

Additions
for the
Year

Deductions
Adjustment
for the Year

As at
st31  March, 
2018

As at
st1  April
2017

For the
Year

On
Deductions

As at
st31  March, 
2018

As at
st31  March, 
2018

As at
st31  March, 
2017

10. Fixed Assets
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11.  Non Current Investments     

 Trade Investments     

 In Equity Shares - Quoted, fully paid up     

 BSE Limited 2 644 0 644 0

 In Equity Shares - Unquoted, fully paid up     

 Saurashtra Kutch Stock Exchange Limited 100 50 5,05,000 50 5,05,000

     

 Total Trade Investment (A)   5,05,000  5,05,000

     

 Other Investments     

 In Equity Shares of Subsidiary Companies     

 Unquoted, fully paid up     

 Arihant Lifespace Infra Developers Limited 10 450000 4,05,00,000 450000 4,05,00,000

 Arihant Future & Commodities Limited 10 355000 79,52,045 355000 79,52,045

 Arihant Insurance Broking Services Limited 10 750000 75,00,000 750000 75,00,000

 Arihant Financial Services Limited 10 250000 2,06,24,435 250000 2,06,24,435

 Arihant Financial Planner and Advisor Private Limited 10 250000 25,00,000 250000 25,00,000

 Ahinsa Lifespace Infraheight Ltd . 10 1900000 1,90,00,000 1900000 1,90,00,000

 Arihant Capital (IFSC) Limited 10 1100000 1,10,00,000 1100000 1,10,00,000

 Arihant Housing Finance Corporation Limited 10 2500000 2,50,00,000 2500000 2,50,00,000

    13,40,76,480  13,40,76,480

 In Equity Shares - Unquoted, fully paid up     

 The Saraswat Co-Operative Bank Limited 10 500 5,000 500 5,000

 Quest Global Technologies Limited  10 90000 9,00,000 90000 9,00,000

    9,05,000  9,05,000

 Total Other Investment (B)   13,49,81,480  13,49,81,480

 Total Non Current Investments (A+B)   13,54,86,480  13,54,86,480

     

 Aggregate Value of Quoted Investments      

 - At Cost   0  0

 - At Market Value    4,86,993   6,29,607

     

 Aggregate Value of Unquoted Investments    13,54,86,480  13,54,86,480

     

 12. Other Non Current Assets     

 (Unsecured, considered good )     

 Deposits with Exchanges / Depositories   1,70,85,000  1,70,85,000

 Total   1,70,85,000  1,70,85,000

     

st31  March,
 2018 

Quantity 

Particulars
st31  March,
 2017

`

stNotes Forming Part Of Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended  31  March, 2018
FV
`

st31  March,
 2018 

`

st31  March,
 2017 

Quantity 
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st31  March,
 2018

Quantity 

Particulars
st31  March,
 2017

`

st
Notes Forming Part Of Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended  31  March, 2018

FV
`

st31  March,
 2018 

`

st31  March,
 2017 

Quantity 

13. Current Investments     

 Investment in Equity Shares - Quoted, fully paid up     

 Avenue Supermarts Limited 10 0 0 10616 64,81,206

 Bajaj Finserv Limited 5 0 0 3000 1,23,05,904

 Bajaj Holding & Investment Limited 10 0 0 12000 2,28,88,841

 Balkrishna Industries Limited 2 0 0 4000 57,57,453

 Borosil Glass Works Ltd. 10 0 0 3400 2,27,31,843

 Dewan Housing Finance Corporation Limited 10 0 0 77000 2,16,22,578

 Dilip Buildcon Limited 10 0 0 25000 86,48,876

 Piramal Enterprises Limited 2 0 0 15000 2,73,19,123

 Maruti Suzuki India Limited 5 2700 1,60,46,910 0 0

 Nitiraj Engineers Limited 10 157200 1,03,59,480 0 0

 Whirlpool of India Limited 10 0 0 20000 2,22,37,235

     

 (A)   2,64,06,390  14,99,93,060

     

 Aggregate Value of Quoted Investments      

 - At Cost   2,72,35,911  14,99,93,060

 - At Market Value   3,42,84,450  16,18,95,077

14.  Inventories

 Stock In Trade 

 Quoted Equity Shares

 Aditya Birla Capital Limited 10 214000 3,12,33,300 0 0

 Albert David Limited 10 20254 74,16,002 0 0

 Bajaj Holding & Investment Limited 10 22607 6,02,36,352 0 0

 Century Plyboards (India) Limited 1 37115 1,21,21,759 0 0

 Century Textiles & Industries Limited 10 9159 1,04,65,073 0 0

 Carborundum Universal Limited 1 0 0 20000 56,70,063

 Equitas Holdings Limited 10 0 0 34000 55,41,754

 Jamna Auto Industries Limited 5 0 0 28000 58,11,438

 Voltas Limited 1 10000 61,27,500 0 0

 Whirlpool of India Limited 10 500 7,48,802 0 0

    12,83,48,787  1,70,23,255

 Aggregate Value of Stock-in-Trade

 - At Cost   13,26,81,144  1,70,23,255

 - At Market Value   12,84,36,611  1,75,42,900



Arihant Capital Markets Ltd.

Annual Report Year 2017-2018 59

st31  March,
 2018 `

Particulars
st31  March,
 2017 `

stNotes Forming Part Of Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended  31  March, 2018

15. Trade Receivables  

 (Unsecured Considered good, except where provided for)  

 Debts over six months 4,11,22,050 2,72,06,106

 Other Debts 111,59,86,889 59,31,47,377

 Total  115,71,08,939 62,03,53,483

  

16.  Cash and Cash Equivalents  

 Balances with banks  

  On current accounts 7,61,24,974 3,88,67,458

  On deposit account* 67,35,00,000 17,28,57,953

  On Unclaimed dividend account 23,07,865 23,35,786

 Cash on hand 4,21,519 99,118

 Total  75,23,54,357 21,41,60,314

  

 * Fixed deposits with bank include deposits of `34,38,00,000/- (previous year 

 `1,95,00,000) with maturity of more than 12 months  

  

  

17.  Short-Term Loans and Advances  

 (Unsecured, considered good )  

 Loan to related parties (Refer note 24) 9,23,16,209 8,00,19,726

 Total  9,23,16,209 8,00,19,726

  

18. Other Current Assets  

 Deposits with Exchanges / Depositories 1,00,14,920 3,71,00,000

 Deposit with Related parties (Refer Note 24) 1,60,75,000 1,60,75,000

 Other Deposits 35,37,037 32,92,303

 Other Advances 1,66,99,533 1,74,68,532

 Income tax & Tds Receivable (Net of Provision) 88,57,486 67,92,472

 Total  5,51,83,976 8,07,28,307

  

19. Revenue From Operations  

 Brokerage 57,41,67,332 42,69,33,814

 Commission Received (Net) 1,35,26,949 1,37,18,271

 Fees From Merchant Banking 7,31,53,146 11,30,28,500

 Interest on Funding 19,42,94,591 12,28,03,230

 Depository Receipts 1,38,88,116 1,49,00,632

 Profit/(Loss) on Trading* -2,24,27,504 4,98,12,931

 Profit on Sale of Investments (net) 5,47,98,206 1,08,61,672

 Dividend Income 1,11,68,335 19,21,816

 Total  91,25,69,172 75,39,80,867
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st31  March,
 2018 `

Particulars
st31  March,
 2017 `
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 *Trading details in cash segment  
 Opening Stock 1,70,23,255 14,07,50,846
 Purchase (including charges) 432,83,30,964 480,78,45,617
 Sales 421,36,14,373 499,38,54,473
 Closing Stock 12,83,48,787 1,70,23,255

20. Other Income  
 Interest Received 2,89,96,514 1,32,33,498
 Bad debts recovered 40,000 16,56,916
 Miscellaneous income 10,93,557 5,43,977
 Total 3,01,30,070 1,54,34,391
  
21. Employee Benefits Expenses (Includes Managerial Remuneration)  
 Salaries, wages and bonus 11,81,32,577 10,51,07,940
 Contribution to provident and other fund 12,01,346 4,36,937
 Gratuity expense 13,53,688 16,39,405
 Staff welfare expenses 20,93,593 15,94,709
 (Refer Note No.26)  
 Total 12,27,81,204 10,87,78,991
  
22. Finance Costs  
 Interest expenses 6,68,53,069 2,53,72,703
 Total 6,68,53,069 2,53,72,703

23. Other Expenses  
 Advertisement 22,29,978 5,36,535
 Auditors’ Remuneration  
  Audit fee 4,50,000 4,50,000
  Taxation matters 0 2,65,000
  Limited review 60,000 60,000
  Other services 0 90,000
 Bad Debts Written Off 33,899 2,21,698
 Bank Charges 70,74,888 43,40,615
 Business Development 62,09,402 26,12,498
 Clearing Charges 20,10,392 4,35,956
 Corporate Social Responsibility 12,50,000 15,72,000
 Communication including V-Sat 95,23,421 85,95,677
 Depository Charges 19,84,422 67,15,866
 Electricity 48,64,676 47,94,977
 Exchange Transaction Charges 4,40,70,927 3,55,62,177
 Insurance 3,37,546 3,49,830
 Legal and Professional  1,01,72,935 91,64,399
 Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 0 1,12,081
 Membership Fee & Subscription 29,31,581 39,73,638
 Merchant Banking Expenses 5,40,19,915 8,89,45,215
 Miscellaneous  31,95,511 32,56,685
 Office Expenses 14,85,921 13,44,241
 Rent 1,09,13,397 98,21,692
 Repairs & Maintenance 66,59,439 52,77,959
 Software Maintenance  1,10,68,771 94,22,098
 Stationery & Printing 17,95,323 11,23,964
 Sub Brokerage/Referral Fees 26,91,36,483 19,99,03,318
 Travelling, Conveyance and Motor Car  54,52,092 40,28,228
 Total 45,69,30,918 40,29,76,347
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24.  Related party transactions     

 “Related party disclosures, as required by Accounting Standard 18, “Related Party Disclosures” issued 
st

 by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India for the year ended  31  March, 2018 are given 

 below:”     

     

 Relationships (During the year)     

 Key Management Personnel   Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain, Chairman & Managing Director   

  Mrs. Anita S Gandhi, Whole Time Director   

  Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain, Director   

  Mr. Akhilesh Rathi, Director   

  Mr. Parag R. Shah, Director   

  Mr. Pavan Kumar Ved, Director   

  Mr. Ashish Maheshwari, Director (from 27.05.2017)   

  Mr. Shailesh Kumath, Director (till 14.06.2017)   

     

 Subsidiaries  Arihant Futures & Commodities Limited   

  Arihant Financial Services Limited   

  Arihant Lifespace Infra Developers Limited    

  Arihant Insurance Broking Services Limited   

  Arihant Financial Planners & Advisors Private Limited   

  Ahinsa Lifespace Infraheight Limited   

  Arihant Housing Finance Corporation Limited   

  Arihant Capital (IFSC) Limited   

     

 Relatives of Key Management Personnel  Arpit Jain   

  Ashok Kumar Jain HUF   

  Kiran Jain   

  Shruti Jain   

  S. N. Gandhi & Co  . 

     

 Enterprises over which Control  M/s. Shyam Developers  

stNotes Forming Part Of Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended  31  March, 2018
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Key 
Management 

Personnel

Particulars
 Enterprise 
over which 

control

stNotes Forming Part Of Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended  31  March, 2018

Total
Relatives of Key 

Management 
Personnel

 Subsidiaries

Depository Charges Received

Arihant Financial Services Limited 0 0 0 0 0

 0 0 1724 0 1724

Arihant Lifespace Infra Developers Limited  0 0 0 0 0

 0 0 583 0 583

Arihant Futures & Commodities Ltd 0 0 1568 0 1568

 0 0 5443 0 5443

Interest Received     

Arihant Financial Services Limited 0 0 0 0 0

 0 0 220966 0 220966

Arihant Lifespace Infra Developers Limited  0 0 4383210 0 4383210

 0 0 21918 0 21918

Expenses Recovered     

Arihant Futures & Commodities Ltd 0 0 522513 0 522513

 0 0 493904 0 493904

Expenses     

Salary & Incentive * 20620829 2361290 0 0 22982119

 22569052 800000 0 0 23369052

Rent # 1440000 4290000 0 252000 5982000

 600000 3450000 0 252210 4302210

Sitting Fees % 360000 0 0 0 360000

 300000 0 0 0 300000

Legal & Professional ** 0 300000 0 0 300000

 0 0 0 0 0

Interest Paid     

Arihant Financial Services Limited 0 0 3546643 0 3546643

 0 0 772876 0 772876

Commission Paid     

Arihant Financial Planners & Advisors Pvt. Ltd 0 0 222646 0 222646

 0 0 64165 0 64165

Assets          

Rent Deposits ^ 350000 2725000 0 13000000 16075000

 350000 2725000 0 13000000 16075000

Share Purchased$ 0 0 0 0 0

 609750 609750 0 0 1219500

Loans Given     

Arihant Financial Services Limited (Maximum Outstanding) 0 0 0 0 0

 0 0 76198036 0 76198036

Arihant Lifespace Infra Developers Limited 

(Maximum Outstanding) 0 0 100000000 0 100000000

 0 0 80019726 0 80019726
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stNotes Forming Part Of Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended  31  March, 2018

Outstanding at year end     

Advance for Expenses     

Arihant Capital (IFSC) Limited  0 0 534420 0 534420

 0 0 334420 0 334420

Loans Given     

Arihant Lifespace Infra Developers Limited 0 0 92316209 0 92316209

 0 0 80019726 0 80019726

Liabilities     

Loans Taken     

Arihant Financial Services Limited 

(Maximum Outstanding) 0 0 127839490 0 127839490

 0 0 92796314 0 92796314

Corporate Guarantee Given     

Arihant Futures & Commodities Ltd 0 0 400000000 0 400000000

 0 0 400000000 0 400000000

Equity Contribution made during the year     

Arihant Capital (IFSC) Limited  0 0 0 0 0

 0 0 11000000 0 11000000

Key 
Management 

Personnel

Particulars
 Enterprise 
over which 

control
Total

Relatives of Key 
Management 

Personnel
 Subsidiaries

Figure in italics represents previous year figures 

*Payment to key management personnel for Salaries and Incentive includes to Ashok Kumar Jain ` 17384029 (Previous Year `19377052 
and Anita Gandhi ` 3236800 (Previous Year `3192000) and to relatives of  key management personal includes Shruti Jain `2361290 
(Previous Year ̀ 800000).

# Rent paid to Ashok Kumar Jain`1440000 (Previous Year `600000), Kiran Jain `3465000 (Previous Year `2625000), Ashok Kumar Jain 
HUF `412500 (Previous Year `412500),  Arpit Jain `412500 (Previous Year `412500) and Shyam Developers `252000 (Previous Year 
`252210).

% Sitting fees paid to Sunil Kumar Jain ̀ 80000 (Previous Year ̀ 80000), Shailesh Kumath ̀ 20000 (Previous Year ̀ 40000),  Paragbhai Shah 
`40000 (Previous Year ̀ 80000), Pavan Ved ̀ 80000 (Previous Year ̀ 40000),  Ashish Maheshwari ̀ 60000 (Previous Year ̀ Nil) and Akhilesh 
Rathi ̀  80000 (Previous Year ̀ 20000).

^ Rent Deposit given includes Ashok Kumar Jain ̀ 350000 (Previous Year ̀ 350000), Kiran Jain ̀ 2037500 (Previous Year ̀ 2037500),  Ashok 
Kumar Jain HUF ` 343750 (Previous Year `343750), Arpit Jain `343750 (Previous Year `343750) and Shyam Developers `13000000 
(Previous Year ̀ 13000000).

$ Share of Arihant Financial Planners & Advisors Private Ltd. purchased from Ashok Kumar Jain ̀ Nil (Previous Year ̀ 609750) & Kiran Jain 
`Nil (Previous Year ̀ 609750)

** S.N. Gandhi & Co ̀ 300000 (Previous Year ̀ Nil)

Particulars 2017-2018 2016-2017

i) Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders (`) 20,03,25,083 14,91,03,230
ii) Weighted Average number of equity shares used as denominator for calculating EPS 2,08,22,560 2,08,22,560
   
iii) Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (`) 9.62 7.16
iv) Face value per Equity Share (`) 5 5

25. Earning per Share
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26. As per Accounting Standard 15 "Employee Benefits", the disclosure as defined in the Accounting Standard are given below:     

stNotes Forming Part Of Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended  31  March, 2018

Defined Contribution Plans 2017-2018 2016-2017

Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund 6,83,488 3,12,120

Employer's Contribution to ESIC 4,64,460 97,602

Defined Benefit Plan

The gratuity paid by the company is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using 
the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit 
entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the financial obligation. The company does not have any policy for leave 
encashment.

Actuarial Assumptions 2017-2018 2016-2017

Mortality Table (LIC) 2006-08 2006-08

 (Ultimate) (Ultimate)

Discount rate (per annum) 6.93% 6.77%

Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) 5% 5%

27. Income in foreign currency ̀ Nil (previous year ̀ Nil). Expenditure in foreign currency ̀ Nil (previous year ̀ Nil).     
     
28.  Contingent Liability & Capital Commitments     
 (i)  Bank Guarantees of `10000000 (Previous Year `13500000) extended to ICCL Bombay Stock Exchange Limited under the 

mandatory rules for membership and ̀  63500000(Previous Year ̀ 50000000) towards additional margin.     
     
 (ii)   Bank Guarantees of ` 7500000(Previous Year `7500000) extended to National Securities Clearing Corporation Limited 

under the mandatory rules for membership and ̀  99800000(Previous Year ̀ 210500000) towards additional margin.     
          
 (iii)  Bank Guarantees of ̀ 1500000 (Previous Year ̀ 1500000) extended to Metropolitan Stock Exchange India Limited under the 

mandatory rules for membership .     
     
 (iv)  Bank Guarantees of ̀ 380100000 (Previous Year ̀ 379500000) extended to Axis Bank Ltd ( Clearning Member of Company in 

NSE FNO segment) towards margin requirement.     
     
 (v)  Corporate guarantee of ̀ 400000000 (Previous Year ̀ 400000000) given to banks on behalf of subsidiary M/s Arihant Futures 

and Commodities Limited.     
     
 (vi)  Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts ̀ Nil (Previous Year ̀ Nil).      

 (vii)  Income Tax Demand for various years ̀ 32,79,854 (`32,79,854)     
     
29.  Fixed Deposits     
 Fixed deposits with scheduled banks include `158400000 (Previous Year `3732953) which is under the lien of National Securities 

Clearing Corporation Limited, ̀ 258300000 (Previous Year ̀ 800000) which is under the lien of Axis Bank Ltd for NSEFNO segment, 
`500000 (Previous Year ̀ 500000) which is under the lien of  Axis Bank Ltd for MSEIL currency derivative segment.     

   
30.  Disclosures under The Micro,  Small,  & Medium Enterprises Development  Act, 2006     
 Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to 

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (SME). The Company is in the process of compiling relevant information from its suppliers 
about their coverage under the said act. Since the relevant information is not readily available, no disclosures have been made in the 
accounts. however, in view of the management, the amounts due to the suppliers are paid within the mutually agreed credit period 
and therefore, there will not be any interest that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act.     

     
31.  Securities are normally held by the Company in its own name except securities pledged with exchange.      
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32.  Securities received from clients as collateral for margins are held by the Company in its own name in a fiduciary capacity.     
     
33. Segment Reporting     
 As per the definition of  ‘Business Segment’ and ‘Geographical Segment’ contained in Accounting Standard 17 “Segment Reporting”, 

the management is of the opinion that the Company’s operation comprise of operating in Primary and Secondary market and 
incidental activities thereto, there is neither more than one reportable business segment nor more than one reportable 
geographical segment, and, therefore, segment information as per Accounting Standard 17 is not required to be disclosed.     

st34. In accordance with the General Circular No.2 and 3 dated 8th Feb 2011 and 21  Feb 2011 issued by The Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs, Government of India, The Balance sheet, the Statement of profit and loss and other documents of the subsidiary are not being 
attached with the Annual Accounts of the company, subject to fulfillment of conditions stipulated in the circular.The Company has 
satisfied the conditions stipulated in the circular and hence is entitled to the exemption. Necessary information relating to the 
subsidiaries has been included in the Consolidated Financial Statements.     

35.  Corporate Social Responsibility     
 The company has formed a CSR committtee responsible to spend the required amount on CSR activities recognized by them and to 

monitor whether the same have been utilised for the intended purpose.     

 a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year (`)   2793061  
 b) Amount spent during the year on:     
  

36.  Events occuring after Balance sheet date     
 The Board of Directors has recommended Equity dividend of ̀  0.75 per share for the financial year 2017-18.     

th37.  The Financial Statements were authorised for issue by the directors on 28  May, 2018.     

38.  Previous year figures     
 The previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified, wherever necessary to conform to current year presentation.     

stNotes Forming Part Of Standalone Financial Statement for the year ended  31  March, 2018

Particulars  Cash (`)  Yet to be paid in cash (`) Total (`)

(i)  Construction/Acquisition of any asset 0 0  0

(ii)  On purpose other than (i) above 1250000 0 1250000

As per our report of even date
For Dinesh Ajmera & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No:011970C

CA. Dinesh Ajmera
Partner
Membership No. : 402629

thIndore, 28  May, 2018

Ashok Kumar Jain
(Chairman & Managing 
Director)
DIN-00184729

For and on behalf of the Board

Anita S Gandhi
(Whole Time Director)
DIN-02864338

Mahesh Pancholi
(Company Secretary)

Tarun Goyal
(CFO)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To
The Members, 
Arihant Capital Markets Limited

Report On the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of ARIHANT CAPITAL MARKETS LIMITED (“the Holding 
Company”), and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Company” or “the Group”) which comprise the Consolidated Balance 
Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then 
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of the appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements 
by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included 
in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material 
misstatements. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that 
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's Directors, as well 
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 

staccounting policies generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31  March, 2018, and its consolidated 
profit and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 
 (a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 

necessary for the purposes of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.
 (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 

examination of those books.
 (c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
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dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of 
consolidated financial statements.

 (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards specified under Section 133 of the 
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

st 
 (e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the holding company as on 31 March, 2018 taken 

on record by the Board of Directors of the holding company and the report of the subsidiary companies, none of the 
st

directors is disqualified as on 31  March, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
 (f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial control over financial reporting of the company and the operating 

effectiveness of such control, refer to our separate report in Annexure “A”; and
 (g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us:

  i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statements as referred 
to in Note 29 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

  ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts; as such the question of commenting on 
any material foreseeable losses thereon does not arise.

  iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Holding Company and subsidiary companies..

For Dinesh Ajmera & Associates                                     
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No:011970C

CA Dinesh Ajmera
Partner

Membership No. : 402629
Indore, May 28, 2018
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ANNEXURE “A” AS REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 2(f) UNDER THE HEADING OF “REPORT ON LEGAL AND 
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS OF ARIHANT CAPITAL 

ST
MARKETS LIMITED ON THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31  MARCH, 2018
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”)

stIn conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group as of and for the year ended 31  March 2018, we have 
audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Arihant Capital Markets Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its 
subsidiary companies, as of that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective management of the holding company and its subsidiaries companies are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Group considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to group's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Group's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and 
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Group's 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 
1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 

assets of the company;
2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company;

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper 
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial 
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control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such 
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Group considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Dinesh Ajmera & Associates                                     
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No:011970C

CA Dinesh Ajmera
Partner

Membership No. : 402629
Indore, May 28, 2018
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st
31  March,

 2018 `
Particulars Note No.

st
31  March,

 2017 `

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Financial Statements

As per our report of even date
For Dinesh Ajmera & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No:011970C

CA. Dinesh Ajmera
Partner
Membership No. : 402629
Indore, 28th May, 2018

Ashok Kumar Jain
(Chairman & Managing 
Director)
DIN-00184729

For and on behalf of the Board

Anita S Gandhi
(Whole Time Director)
DIN-02864338

Mahesh Pancholi
(Company Secretary)

Tarun Goyal
(CFO)

1 to 37

st
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at  31  March, 2018

 EQUITY & LIABILITIES   

 Shareholders' fund   

 Share Capital 2 10,41,12,800 10,41,12,800

 Reserves and Surplus 3 108,48,22,275 89,69,35,432

   118,89,35,075 100,10,48,232

    

 Non-Current Liabilities   

 Long Term Provisions 4 78,14,975 82,64,855

 Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 5 50,96,457 33,74,444

   1,29,11,432 1,16,39,299

    

 Current Liabilities   

 Short-Term Borrowings 6 95,08,46,409 8,46,44,086

 Trade Payables 7 66,88,66,940 67,21,33,101

 Other Current Liabilities 8 26,40,64,324 22,73,71,319

 Short-Term Provisions 9 35,58,227 27,24,758

   188,73,35,899 98,68,73,264

 TOTAL  308,91,82,406 199,95,60,794

    

 ASSETS   

 Non-Current Assets   

 Fixed Assets 10  

  Tangible Assets  20,28,22,926 19,13,23,247

  Intangible Assets  70,51,105 22,57,308

 Non-Current Investments 11 14,10,000 14,10,000

 Other Non-Current Assets 12 2,05,05,000 2,03,05,000

   23,17,89,031 21,52,95,555

    

 Current Assets   

 Current Investments 13 2,64,06,390 14,99,93,060

 Inventories 14 46,61,14,858 33,33,12,306

 Trade Receivables 15 122,10,80,126 66,88,11,085

 Cash and Cash Equivalents 16 106,21,68,572 52,19,04,166

 Other Current Assets 17 8,16,23,430 11,02,44,622

   285,73,93,375 178,42,65,240

 TOTAL  308,91,82,406 199,95,60,794



Arihant Capital Markets Ltd.

Annual Report Year 2017-2018 71

st
31  March,

 2018 `
Particulars Note No.

st
31  March,

 2017 `

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Financial Statements

As per our report of even date
For Dinesh Ajmera & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No:011970C

CA. Dinesh Ajmera
Partner
Membership No. : 402629
Indore, 28th May, 2018

Ashok Kumar Jain
(Chairman & Managing 
Director)
DIN-00184729

For and on behalf of the Board

Anita S Gandhi
(Whole Time Director)
DIN-02864338

Mahesh Pancholi
(Company Secretary)

Tarun Goyal
(CFO)

1 to 37

st
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended  31  March, 2018

Income   

I Revenue from Operations 18 97,10,35,327 82,96,41,415

II Other income 19 5,34,06,034 3,98,20,374

III Total Revenue (I+II)  102,44,41,361 86,94,61,789

    

IV Expenses   

 Cost of Sale 20 1,07,62,126 53,96,332

 Employee benefits expenses 21 13,97,87,761 12,41,29,738

 Finance costs 22 7,18,51,102 3,38,21,654

 Other expenses 23 49,41,22,678 44,72,23,676

 Net depreciation and amortization expenses 10 99,14,955 83,59,533

 Total (IV)  72,64,38,622 61,89,30,933

V Profit Before Exceptional and Extraordinary Items and Tax (III-IV) 29,80,02,739 25,05,30,856

VI Exceptional items  0 0

VII Profit Before Extraordinary Items and Tax (V-VI)  29,80,02,739 25,05,30,856

VIII Extraordinary Items  0 0

IX Profit Before Tax (VII-VIII)  29,80,02,739 25,05,30,856

X Tax expenses   

  Current tax  8,95,97,724 8,30,76,783

  Deferred tax  17,22,014 6,02,949

 Total tax expenses  9,13,19,738 8,36,79,732

XI Profit/(loss) for the year  20,66,83,001 16,68,51,124

XII Earnings per Share    

 Equity Shares of `5 each 26  

     Basic   9.93 8.01

     Diluted  9.93 8.01
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st
31  March,

 2018 `
Particulars Note No.

st
31  March,

 2017 `

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Financial Statements

As per our report of even date
For Dinesh Ajmera & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No:011970C

CA. Dinesh Ajmera
Partner
Membership No. : 402629
Indore, 28th May, 2018

Ashok Kumar Jain
(Chairman & Managing 
Director)
DIN-00184729

For and on behalf of the Board

Anita S Gandhi
(Whole Time Director)
DIN-02864338

Mahesh Pancholi
(Company Secretary)

Tarun Goyal
(CFO)

1 to 37

st
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended  31  March, 2018

 Cash flow from operating Activities   
 Net profit before taxation  29,80,02,739 25,05,30,856
 Add adjustments for :   
 (Profit) / Loss on sale of fixed assets  0 1,12,081
 (Profit) / Loss on sale of Investments  -5,47,98,206 -1,08,61,672
 Provision on Standard Assets   37,923 -2,69,668
 Provision for Gratuity  8,49,819 14,89,159
 Provision for Loss on Option Contract                                  0 -23,82,765
 Preliminary Expenses  1,200 3,34,420
 Depreciation / amortisation  1,01,31,345 85,75,923
 Dividend Income  -40,68,335 -19,21,816
 Operating profit before working capital changes  25,01,56,485 24,56,06,518
 Adjustments for changes in working capital :   
 - Trade and other receivables  -52,36,47,849 -39,30,36,124
 - Inventories  -13,28,02,551 2,19,87,054
 - Trade and other payables  3,34,26,844 34,59,98,301
 Cash generated from operation  -37,28,67,071 22,05,55,748
 - Taxes paid  (net)  -9,01,01,877 -8,25,09,753
 Net cash from Operating Activity (A)  -46,29,68,949 13,80,45,996
 Cash flow from Investing Activities   
 (Purchase) / Sales of fixed assets  -2,64,24,822 -2,12,02,210
 (Purchase) / Sales of Investments  17,83,84,877 -13,95,13,282
 Capital Advance  -2,00,000 0
 Dividend received  40,68,335 19,21,816
 Net Cash Used In Investing Activity (B)  15,58,28,390 -15,87,93,676
 Cash flow from Financing Activities   
 Dividend Paid  -1,56,16,920 0
 Preliminary Expenses  -1,200 -3,34,420
 Proceeds from secured loans  86,62,02,322 8,46,44,086
 Dividend distribution tax paid  -31,79,238 0
 Net cash used in Financing Activities(C)  84,74,04,964 8,43,09,666
 Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  54,02,64,405 6,35,61,986
 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  52,19,04,166 45,83,42,181
 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  106,21,68,572 52,19,04,166
    
 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of   
 Cash and cheques in hand  6,92,375 4,19,704
 Balances with scheduled banks  106,14,76,197 52,14,84,462
 Total  106,21,68,572 52,19,04,166
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NOTE 1: STATEMENT ON SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
 The financial statements have been prepared to comply with applicable accounting principles in India, the Accounting Standards 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The accounts are 
prepared on historical cost basis and on the principle of going concern. Accounting policies not specifically referred to are in 
consonance with prudent and generally accepted accounting practices. The accounting policies have been consistently applied unless 
otherwise stated.

B. USE OF ESTIMATES
 The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles which require the 

management of the company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and results of operations during the reporting 
periods. Although these estimates are based upon the management's best knowledge of current events & actions, actual results could 
differ from those estimates. Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are 
known / materialized.

C. REVENUE RECOGNITION

 i. Group recognises Brokerage Income and Profit/ (Loss) from Trading of Securities on the basis of the date of trade of 
settlement, of respective stock exchanges.

 ii. Income from interest on Loans is recognized on accrual basis.
 iii. Other Income is accounted for on accrual basis. 
 iv. The Annual Maintenance Charges in respect of Account Holders of the Depository Division of the Group are accounted at 

the time of opening of account or completion of the year irrespective of the period they pertain to.

D.  FIXED ASSETS

 Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Historical cost comprises the purchase price and all direct 
cost attributable to bring the asset to its working condition for intended use.

E. DEPRECIATION

 Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on the straight-line method over the useful lives of assets as mentioned and envisaged 
under Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during a period is proportionately charged. 
Intangible assets are amortized over their respective individual estimated lives on a straight-line basis, commencing from the date the 
asset is available to the Company for its use.

F.  INVESTMENTS

 Investments are classified into long term investments and current investments. Investments which are intended to be held for more 
than one year are classified as long term investments and investments which are intended to be held for less than one year are 
classified as current investments. Investments are accounted at cost and any decline in the carrying value other than temporary in 
nature is provided for. 

G.  STOCK IN TRADE

 Securities Shown as Inventories are valued scrip wise at Weighted Average Cost of the day or Market Value whichever is lower. Cost 
includes direct expenses.

 Inventories (Land) are valued at Cost or Market Value whichever is lower. Cost includes direct expenses.

H.  CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

 Cash comprises cash in hand and balances with banks. Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily 
convertible into cash and which are subject to insignificant risks of changes in value.

st
Notes Forming Part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended  31  March, 2018
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I.  RETIREMENT BENEFITS

 i. Gratuity liability is a defined benefit obligation and is wholly unfunded. The Group accounts for liability for future gratuity 
benefits based on actuarial valuation.

 ii. Provident fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions as required by the statute are charged to the Profit and 
Loss Account as incurred.

J.  EQUITY INDEX/ STOCK FUTURES

 (a)  “Initial Margin – Equity Derivative Instrument”, representing the initial margin paid for entering into contracts for equity 
index/stock futures which are released on final settlement/squaring-up of underlying contracts, are disclosed under Loans 
and Advances. 

 (b) Equity index/stock futures for arbitrage purposes are marked-to-market on a daily basis. Debit or credit balance disclosed 
under Loans and Advances or Current Liabilities, respectively, in the “Mark-to-Market Margin – Equity Index/Stock Futures 
Account”, represents the net amount paid or received on the basis of movement in the prices of index/ stock futures till the 
Balance Sheet date. 

 (c) As on the Balance Sheet date, profit/loss on open positions in equity index/ stock futures are accounted for as follows: 
Ÿ   Credit balance in the “Mark-to-Market Margin – Equity Index/Stock Futures Account”, being the anticipated profit, is 

ignored and no credit for the same is taken in the Profit and Loss Account. 
Ÿ   Debit balance in the “Mark-to-Market Margin – Equity Index/Stock Futures Account”, being anticipated loss, is adjusted in 

the Profit and Loss Account. 
 (d) On final settlement or squaring-up of contracts for equity index/stock futures, the profit or loss is calculated as the difference 

between the settlement/squaring-up price and the contract price. Accordingly, debit or credit balance pertaining to the 
settled/squared-up contract in “Mark-to-Market Margin – Equity Index/ Stock Futures Account” after adjustment of provision 
for anticipated losses is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account. 

  When more than one contract in respect of the relevant series of equity index/ stock futures contract to which the squared-
up contract pertains is outstanding at the time of the squaring-up of the contract, the contract price of the contract so 
squared-up is determined using the weighted average cost method for calculating the profit/loss on squaring-up. 

K.  EQUITY INDEX/ STOCK OPTIONS

 (a) “Initial Margin Equity Derivative Instrument” representing the initial margin paid, and “Margin Deposit”, representing the 
additional margin paid over and above the initial margin, for entering into contracts for equity index/ stock options, which are 
released on final settlement/squaring-up of the underlying contracts, are disclosed under Loans and Advances.

 (b) “Equity Index/Stock Option Premium Account” represents the premium paid or received for buying or selling the options, 
respectively. 

 (c) As at the Balance Sheet date, in the case of long positions, provision is made for the amount by which the premium paid for 
those options exceeds the premium prevailing on the Balance Sheet date, and in the case of short positions, for the amount by 
which the premium prevailing on the Balance Sheet date exceeds the premium received for those options, and is reflected in 
“Provision for Loss on Equity Index/ Stock Option Account”.

 (d) When the options are squared up before expiry of the options, the premium prevailing in "Equity Index/Stock Option 
Premium Account" on that date is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account. If more than one option contract in respect of 
the same index/stock with the same strike price and expiry date to which the squared-up contract pertains is outstanding at 
the time of squaring-up of the contract, the weighted average method is followed for determining the profit or loss.

  On the expiry of the contracts and on exercising the options, the difference between the final settlement price and the strike 
price is transferred to the Profit and Loss Account.

  In both the above cases, the premium paid or received for buying or selling the option, as the case may be, is recognised in the 
Profit and Loss Account for all squared-up/settled contracts.

L.  TAXES ON INCOME 

 a) Current corporate tax is provided on the results for the year after considering applicable tax rates and laws. 

st
Notes Forming Part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended  31  March, 2018
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 b) Deferred Tax is provided on timing differences between tax and accounting treatments that originate in one period and are 
expected to be reversed or settled in subsequent periods. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the enacted / 
substantively enacted tax rates and laws for continuing operations. Deferred tax assets, in the event of unabsorbed 
depreciation and carry forward losses under tax laws, that exceed the deferred tax liability, are recognized only where there 
virtual certainty of realization. Deferred tax assets on other accounts are recognized only to the extent there is reasonable 
certainty of realization. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date to reassess 
realization.

 c) Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that 
the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to 
be recognized as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in Guidance Note issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India, the said asset is created by way of a credit to the profit and loss account and shown as MAT 
Credit Entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT 
Credit Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal 
Income Tax during the specified period.

M.  EARNING PER SHARE

 The Group reports Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share in accordance with Accounting Standard –20, “Earning Per Share” issued by 
The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Basic Earning Per Share is computed by dividing net profit after tax by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding for the period. Diluted Earning Per Share is computed using the weighted average 
number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the period.

N.  FOREIGN CURRENCY  TRANSACTIONS

 (a) Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction or 
that approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

 (b) Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are restated at year end rates. In case of items which are 
covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the year end rate and rate on the date of the contract is 
recognised as exchange difference and the premium paid on forward contracts is recognised over the life of the contract.

 (c) Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is recognised in the Profit 
and Loss account except in case of long term liabilities, where they relate to acquisition of fixed assets, in which case they are 
adjusted to the carrying cost of such assets.

O.  IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

 Impairment loss, if any, is provided to the extent the carrying amount of assets exceeds their recoverable amount. Recoverable 
amount is higher of an asset's net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of estimated future cash flows 
expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.

P.  PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS

 Provisions are recognized for present obligations, of uncertain timing or amount, arising as a result of a past event where a reliable 
estimate can be made and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation. Where it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required or the amount 
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability unless the possibility of outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits is remote.

 Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the possibility of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is 
remote.

Q. BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

 The financial statements of the subsidiary companies used in the consolidation are drawn up to the same reporting date as of the 
Company.

st
Notes Forming Part of Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended  31  March, 2018
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 The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

 a) The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies have been combined on a line-by line basis by adding 
together like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Inter-company balances and transactions and unrealised profits 
or losses have been fully eliminated.

 b) The excess of cost to the Company of its investments in subsidiary companies over its share of the equity of the subsidiary 
companies at the dates on which the investments in the subsidiary companies are made, is recognised as 'Goodwill' being an 
asset in the consolidated financial statements. Alternatively, where the share of equity in the subsidiary companies as on the 
date of investment is in excess of cost of investment of the Company, it is recognised as 'Capital Reserve' and shown under the 
head 'Reserves and Surplus', in the consolidated financial statements.

 c) Minority interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries consists of the amount of equity attributable to the minority 
shareholders at the dates on which investments are made by the Company in the subsidiary companies and further 
movements in their share in the equity, subsequent to the dates of investments.

 d) The difference between the proceeds from disposal of investment in subsidiaries and the carrying amount of its assets less 
liabilities as of the date of disposal is recognized in the consolidated Profit and Loss Statement being the profit or loss on 
disposal of investment in subsidiary.

 e) Minority Interest's share of net profit of consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted against the income of 
the group in order to arrive at the net income attributable to shareholders of the Company.

 f) Minority Interest's share of net assets of consolidated subsidiaries is identified and presented in the consolidated balance 
sheet separate from liabilities and the equity of the Company's shareholders.
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2. Share Capital  

 Authorised   

 2,50,00,000 (2,50,00,000) equity share of `5/- each  12,50,00,000   12,50,00,000 

  

 Issued, Subscribed & Paid up   

 2,08,22,560 (2,08,22,560) equity share of `5/- each   10,41,12,800   10,41,12,800 

 Total   10,41,12,800   10,41,12,800 

  

 a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and 

 at the end of the reporting period  

  

 Equity Shares of face value `5/-  

 Share outstanding at the beginning of the period  2,08,22,560 2,08,22,560

 Share outstanding at the end of period 2,08,22,560 2,08,22,560

  

 b. List of the Shareholders holding more than 5% of the total 

 number of shares issued by the company  

 Name of the shareholders  

 Ashok Kumar Jain 60,63,040 (29.12%) 60,63,040 (29.12%)

 Kiran Jain 47,28,320 (22.71%) 47,28,320 (22.71%)

 Sunil Kumar Jain 16,06,656 (7.72%) 16,06,656 (7.72%)

 Arpit Jain 11,47,840 (5.51%) 11,47,840 (5.51%)

  

3. Reserve and Surplus  

 General Reserve  

 Balance as per the last financial statements 76,42,61,965 66,02,61,965

 Add: Transfer from Profit & Loss 15,85,00,000 10,40,00,000

 Closing Balance 92,27,61,965 76,42,61,965

  

 Statutory Reserve  

 Balance as per last Balance Sheet 85,72,000 74,47,000

 Add : Transfer from Profit and Loss Account 10,26,000 11,25,000

 Closing Balance 95,98,000 85,72,000

  

 Capital Reserve on Consolidation  

 Balance as per last Balance Sheet 35,14,559 34,05,129

 Add : Change during the year  1,09,430

 Closing Balance 35,14,559 35,14,559

  

 Surplus/(deficit) in the statement of profit and loss  

 Balance as per last financial statements 12,05,86,908 5,88,60,784

 Profit for the year 20,66,83,001 16,68,51,124

 Less: Appropriations  

 Equity Dividend (Dividend per share `0.75) 1,56,16,920 0

 Dividend Distribution Tax 31,79,238 0

 Transfer to General Reserve 15,85,00,000 10,40,00,000

 Transfer to Statutory Reserve 10,26,000 11,25,000

 Net surplus in the statement of Profit and Loss 14,89,47,751 12,05,86,908

 Total  108,48,22,275 89,69,35,432
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4.  Long Term Provisions  

 Provision for Employee Benefits 78,14,975 82,64,855

 Total   78,14,975 82,64,855

  

5. Deferred Tax Liabilities/ (Assets)  

 Deferred Tax Liabilities  

 Related to Fixed Assets 97,05,719 76,39,553

 Total (a)  97,05,719 76,39,553

  

 Deferred Tax Assets  

 Disallowance under the Income Tax Act, 1961 45,06,695 41,88,232

 MAT Credit Entitlement 17,612 0

 Unabsorbed Losses 84,955 76,877

 Total (b)  46,09,262 42,65,109

  

 Net Deferred Tax Liabilities /(Assets) [(a)-(b)] 50,96,457 33,74,444

  

6. Short Term Borrowings  

 Secured  

 From Bank* 91,43,46,408 8,46,44,086

 Unsecured   

 From Others  3,65,00,000 0

 Total   95,08,46,409 8,46,44,086

 * Bank Overdraft are secured against pledge of securities, trade receivables 

 and property.  

   

7. Trade Payables  

 Sundry Creditors (Includes Trade Payables)  

 Other than Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 66,88,66,940 67,21,33,101

  Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 0 0

 (Refer Note 31)  

 Total   66,88,66,940 67,21,33,101

  

8. Other Current Liabilities  

 Other Payables 8,82,64,055 8,95,70,550

 Advance Recieved against Sale of Plot 5,48,47,280 5,80,51,000

 Advance for Maintenance Receipt 1,49,688 2,29,214

 Liability for Exp to be incurred 21,28,351 11,93,937

 Unpaid Dividend # 23,07,865 23,35,786

 Deposits from Intermediateries & Others 11,63,67,085 7,59,90,831

 Total   26,40,64,324 22,73,71,319

 # Out of the above amount, the company is required to credit a sum of `3,05,301/-
st lying in the unpaid/unclaimed dividend account, on or before  31  October, 2018 to 

 the Investor Education & Protection Fund pursuant to Sub -section (1) of Section 125  

 of The Companies Act, 2013. 



Tangible Assets          

Freehold Land 10,66,54,080 0 0 10,66,54,080 0 0 0 0 10,66,54,080 10,66,54,080

Premises 6,71,44,313 0 0 6,71,44,313 65,62,378 10,61,809 0 76,24,187 5,95,20,126 6,05,81,935

Furniture & Fixtures 2,44,70,682 19,09,747 7,51,943 2,56,28,486 1,67,13,888 13,28,452 7,51,243 1,72,91,097 83,37,389 77,56,794

Office Equipments 1,23,59,533 13,10,747 80,775 1,35,89,505 97,92,747 8,57,852 76,736 1,05,73,862 30,15,643 25,66,786

Computers  4,23,08,422 64,32,754 34,63,826 4,52,77,350 3,60,61,225 37,47,930 34,60,326 3,63,48,829 89,28,520 62,47,197

Electrical Installations 22,81,995 81,831 0 23,63,826 9,37,684 1,76,262 0 11,13,946 12,49,880 13,44,311

Motor Vehicles 1,31,88,968 1,27,60,760 38,70,979 2,20,78,749 70,16,824 23,96,420 24,51,783 69,61,461 1,51,17,288 61,72,144

Sub Total (A) 26,84,07,993 2,24,95,839 81,67,523 28,27,36,309 7,70,84,746 95,68,725 67,40,088 7,99,13,382 20,28,22,926 19,13,23,247

Intangible Assets           

Software 1,77,97,794 53,56,418 0 2,31,54,212 1,55,40,787 5,62,621 0 1,61,03,407 70,50,805 22,57,007

MCX Membership 3,51,000 0 0 3,51,000 3,50,900 0 0 3,50,900 100 100

NCDEX Membership 50,000 0 0 50,000 49,900 0 0 49,900 100 100

NSEL Membership 5,00,000 0 0 5,00,000 4,99,900 0 0 4,99,900 100 100

Sub Total (B) 1,86,98,794 53,56,418 0 2,40,55,212 1,64,41,486 5,62,621 0 1,70,04,107 70,51,105 22,57,308

Total (A+B) 28,71,06,787 2,78,52,257 81,67,523 30,67,91,521 9,35,26,232 1,01,31,345 67,40,088 9,69,17,489 20,98,74,031 19,35,80,555

Previous year figure 26,65,20,102 2,13,23,936 7,37,251 28,71,06,787 8,54,53,752 85,75,923 5,03,444 9,35,26,232 19,35,80,555 
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9. Short-Term Provisions  

 Contingent Provisions against Standard Assets 2,29,334 1,91,410

 Provision for Employee Benefits 31,76,052 18,76,353

 Provision for tax (Net) 1,52,841 6,56,995

 Total   35,58,227 27,24,758

PARTICULARS  

GROSS BLOCK     DEPRECIATION     NET BLOCK

As at
st1  April
2017

Additions
for the
Year

Deductions
Adjustment
for the Year

As at
st31  March, 
2018

As at
st1  April
2017

For the
Year

On
Deductions

As at
st31  March, 
2018

As at
st31  March, 
2018

As at
st 31 March, 
2017

10.Fixed Assets

Notes:
1. Out of the depreciation for the year `2,16,390 transferred to Land Development Cost in Arihant Lifespace Infra developers Ltd.



Annual Report Year 2017-201880

11. Non Current Investments
 Trade Investments     
 In Equity Shares - Quoted, fully paid up     
 BSE Limited 2 644 0 644 0
     
 In Equity Shares - Unquoted, fully paid up     
 Saurashtra Kutch Stock Exchange Limited 100 50 5,05,000 50 5,05,000
     
 Total Trade Investment (A)   5,05,000  5,05,000
     
 Other Investments     
 In Equity Shares - Unquoted, fully paid up     
 The Saraswat Co-Operative Bank Limited 10 500 5000 500 5,000
 Quest Global Technologies Limited  10 90000 900000 90000 9,00,000
 Quoted Mutual Fund     
 Reliance Money Manager Fund - Growth Plan 
 Growth Option     0
 Total Other Investment (B)   9,05,000  9,05,000
     
 Total Non Current Investments (A+B)   14,10,000  14,10,000
     
 Aggregate Value of Quoted Investments      
 - At Cost    0  0
 - At Market Value   4,86,993  6,29,607
     
 Aggregate Value of Unquoted Investments    14,10,000  14,10,000
     
12. Other Non Current Assets     
 (Unsecured, considered good )     
 Deposits with Exchanges / Depositories   2,03,05,000  2,03,05,000
 Capital Advance   2,00,000  0
 Total     2,05,05,000  2,03,05,000

13. Current Investments
 Investment in Equity Shares - Quoted, fully paid up     
     
 Avenue Supermarts Limited 10 0 0 10616 64,81,206
 Bajaj Finserv Limited 5 0 0 3000 1,23,05,904
 Bajaj Holding & Investment Limited 10 0 0 12000 2,28,88,841
 Balkrishna Industries Limited 2 0 0 4000 57,57,453
 Borosil Glass Works Ltd. 10 0 0 3400 2,27,31,843
 Dewan Housing Finance Corporation Limited 10 0 0 77000 2,16,22,578
 Dilip Buildcon Limited 10 0 0 25000 86,48,876
 Piramal Enterprises Limited 2 0 0 15000 2,73,19,123
 Maruti Suzuki India Limited 5 2700 1,60,46,910 0 0
 Nitiraj Engineers Limited 10 157200 1,03,59,480 0 0
 Whirlpool of India Limited 10 0 0 20000 2,22,37,235
 Total      2,64,06,390  14,99,93,060
     
 Aggregate Value of Quoted Investments      
 - At Cost    2,72,35,911  14,99,93,060
 - At Market Value   3,42,84,450  16,18,95,077

st31  March,
 2018

Quantity 

Particulars
st31  March,
 2017

`

FV
`

st31  March,
 2018 

`

st31  March,
 2017 

Quantity 

st 
Notes on Consolidation Financial Statements for the year ended  31 March, 2018
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14. Inventories 

 A. Shares

 Quoted Equity Shares     

 Aditya Birla Capital Limited 10 214000 3,12,33,300 0 0

 Albert David Limited 10 20254 74,16,002 0 0

 Bajaj Holding & Investment Limited 10 22607 6,02,36,352 0 0

 Century Plyboards (India) Limited 1 37115 1,21,21,759 0 0

 Century Textiles & Industries Limited 10 9159 1,04,65,073 0 0

 Carborundum Universal Limited 1 0 0 20000 56,70,063

 Equitas Holdings Limited 10 0 0 34000 55,41,754

 Jamna Auto Industries Limited 5 0 0 28000 58,11,438

 Voltas Limited 1 10000 61,27,500 0 0

 Whirlpool of India Limited 10 500 7,48,802 0 0

    12,83,48,787  1,70,23,255

 Aggregate Value of Stock-in-Trade     

 - At Cost   13,26,81,144  1,70,23,255

 - At Market Value   12,84,36,611  1,75,42,900

     

 B.Land     

 Land and Development Cost (WIP)   33,77,66,071  31,62,89,051

    33,77,66,071  31,62,89,051

     

 Total (a+b)   46,61,14,858  33,33,12,306
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15. Trade Receivables  
 (Considered good, except where provided for)  
 Debts over six months  
 -Secured  6,76,500 0
 -Unsecured 5,22,46,530 3,93,73,150
 Other Debts  
 -Secured  2,11,84,182 3,03,22,062
 -Unsecured 114,69,72,914 59,91,15,872
 Total   122,10,80,126 66,88,11,085
  
16. Cash and Cash Equivalents  
 Balances with banks  
 On current accounts 19,16,79,653 11,90,84,473
 On deposit account* 86,74,88,680 38,90,64,204
 Cheque In Hand 0 1,10,00,000
 On Unclaimed dividend account 23,07,865 23,35,786
 Cash on hand 6,92,375 4,19,704
 Total   106,21,68,572 52,19,04,166
  
 * Fixed deposits with bank include deposits of `39,67,75,000 
 (previous year `5,27,25,000) with maturity of more than 12 months  
  
  
17. Other Current Assets  
 Deposits with Exchanges / Depositories 1,66,41,023 4,21,45,000
 Deposit with Related parties (Refer Note 25) 1,68,87,500 1,68,87,500
 Advance against Property 1,01,32,420 1,01,32,420
 Other Deposits 35,77,037 33,32,303
 Other Advances 2,23,38,715 2,90,09,517
 Income tax & Tds Receivable (Net of Provision) 1,20,46,736 87,37,883
 Total   8,16,23,430 11,02,44,622
  
18. Revenue From Operations  
 Brokerage  61,21,01,521 46,81,74,853
 Commission Received (Net) 1,49,56,218 1,40,17,019
 Fees From Merchant Banking 7,31,53,146 11,30,28,500
 Interest on Funding 19,42,94,591 12,27,95,480
 Depository Receipts 1,38,88,116 1,49,00,632
 Interest on Loans and Deposit 1,46,15,165 2,43,23,312
 Sale of Plot 1,19,90,107 88,90,663
 Maintenance Receipt 1,87,526 48,786
 Profit/(Loss) on Share Trading* -2,18,60,178 5,00,72,239
 Profit/(Loss) on Commodity Trading                                    -14,20,614 0
 Profit on Sale of Investments (net) 5,47,98,206 1,08,61,672
 Dividend Income 40,68,335 19,21,816
 Consultancy Charges 20,000 0
 Other   2,43,188 6,06,443
 Total   97,10,35,327 82,96,41,415
  
 *Trading details in cash segment  
 Opening Stock 1,70,23,255 14,07,50,846
 Purchase (including charges) 451,25,86,273 484,50,02,842
 Sales   439,87,33,540 503,12,70,341
 Closing Stock 12,83,48,787 1,70,23,255
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19. Other Income  
 Interest Received 5,20,31,294 3,68,38,595
 Bad Debts Recovered 40,000 16,56,916
 Reversal of provision on Standard Assets  0 2,69,668
 Foreign Exchange Gain 33,305 0
 Miscellaneous Income 13,01,435 10,55,195
 Total   5,34,06,034 3,98,20,374

20. Cost of Sale  
 Opening Stock 31,62,89,051 21,45,48,515
 Add:-  
 Transfer (to)/from Fixed Assets  0 0
 Land Purchased during the year 0 2,13,79,901
 Land development cost  
 Cost of Material Purchased 5,18,573 1,13,32,581
 Freight & Cartage 0 2,300
 Operating & Project Expenses Incurred During the Year:-  
 Architect Fees 1,00,000 7,00,000
 Preliminaries & Site Expenses 13,86,499 25,32,268
 Civil, Electrical, Contracting etc. 37,06,926 3,43,42,931
 Electricity  4,62,702 3,08,043
 Electrical Development & Supervision Charges 34,68,659 1,14,04,833
 Payment to Local Agencies & Permission Charges 14,42,999 1,56,500
 Finance Cost 2,09,36,397 2,46,59,382
 Depreciation (Refer Note No 10) 2,16,390 2,16,390
 Other Overheads 0 1,01,740
 Total    34,85,28,197 32,16,85,384
  
 Less : Closing Stock 33,77,66,071 31,62,89,051

 Total   1,07,62,126 53,96,332
  
21.  Employee Benefit Expenses (Includes Managerial Remuneration)  
 Salaries, Wages and Bonus 13,49,33,735 12,03,71,312
 Contribution to Provident and other Fund 12,01,346 4,36,937
 Gratuity Expense 13,53,688 16,39,405
 Staff Welfare Expenses 22,98,992 16,82,084
 Total   13,97,87,761 12,41,29,738
  
22. Finance Cost  
 Interest Expenses 7,18,51,102 3,38,21,654
     7,18,51,102 3,38,21,654
23.  Other Expenses  
 Advertisement 22,60,815 8,01,225
 Auditors’ Remuneration  
 Audit fee  6,01,500 6,18,538
 Taxation matters 27,500 4,58,725
 Limited review 60,000 60,000
 Other services 0 90,000
 Bad Debts Written Off 33,899 2,21,698
 Bank & Depository Charges 99,27,942 71,16,372
 Business Development 62,20,512 26,27,311
 Clearing Charges 20,10,392 4,35,956
 Corporate Social Responsibility 12,50,000 15,72,000
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 Communication including V-Sat 1,03,16,412 93,06,809
 Depository Charges 19,89,416 67,12,889
 Electricity  53,33,485 52,35,437
 Exchange Transaction Charges 5,91,08,452 5,36,38,407
 Insurance  5,67,024 5,71,137
 Legal and Professional  1,07,03,304 95,60,012
 Loss on Sale of Assets 0 1,12,081
 Membership Fee & Subscription 38,47,981 43,87,465
 Merchant Banking Expenses 5,40,19,915 8,89,45,215
 Miscellaneous Expenses 35,79,628 36,71,981
 Office Expenses 17,62,526 17,05,899
 Preliminary Expenses 1,200 3,34,420
 Rent, Rates & Taxes 1,24,03,846 1,13,11,792
 Repairs & Maintenance 66,93,739 53,38,051
 Provision on Standard Assets  37,923 0
 Software Maintenance  1,27,90,822 1,10,77,300
 Stationery & Printing 18,21,101 12,07,399
 Sub Brokerage/Referral Fees and Expenses 28,02,38,401 21,48,79,157
 Travelling, Conveyance and Motor Car Expenses 65,14,943 52,26,400
     49,41,22,678 44,72,23,676

 Arihant Financial Services Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
 Arihant Futures & Commodities Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
 Arihant Lifespace Infra Developers Limited  India 100.00% 100.00%
 Arihant Insurance Broking Services Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
 Arihant Financial Planners and Advisors Private Limited* India 100.00% 100.00%
 Arihant Housing Finance Corporation Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
 Ahinsa Lifespace Infraheight Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
 Arihant Capital (IFSC) Limited India 100.00% 100.00%

24     (a). Companies included in consolidation

Name of Subsidiaries
Country of 

Incorporation

Proportion of Interest

as on 31.03.18 as on 31.03.17

2017-2018

As a % of 
consolidated 

net assets

As a % of 
consolidated 

Profit

Amount 
`

24 (b) Disclosures mandated by Schedule III of Companies Act 2013, by way of additional information

Parent 
Arihant Capital Markets Limited 71.16%  94,14,58,430  93.70%  20,03,25,083 
Subsidary    
Indian    
Arihant Financial Services Limited 4.78%  6,31,92,805  2.40%  51,29,620 
Arihant Futures & Commodities Limited 10.05%  13,29,62,212  3.14%  67,07,558 
Arihant Lifespace Infra Developers Limited 8.73%  11,55,24,367  0.10%  2,11,155 
Arihant Insurance Broking Services Limited 0.65%  86,45,979  0.06%  1,37,123 
Arihant Financial Planners and Advisors Private Limited 0.29%  37,79,710  0.35%  7,51,605 
Arihant Housing Finance Corporation Limited 2.13%  2,81,64,640  0.30%  6,35,050 
Ahinsa Lifespace Infraheight Limited 1.41%  1,87,12,078  -0.01%  (31,448)
Arihant Capital (IFSC) Limited 0.80%  1,05,71,335  -0.04%  (82,745)
Sub Total 100.00%  132,30,11,555  100.00%  21,37,83,001 
Less Intercompany Elimination and Consolidation Adjustments   (13,40,76,480) -  (71,00,000)
Total   118,89,35,075    20,66,83,001 
Minority Interest   -      -   
Grand Total   118,89,35,075    20,66,83,001 

Amount 
`

Share in profit /(loss)
Net Assets i.e. total assets 

minus total liabilitiesName of the Entities
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Name of the Entities
Net Assets i.e. total assets 

minus total liabilities
Share in profit /(loss)

2016-2017

As a % of 
consolidated 

net assets

Amount 
`

As a % of 
consolidated 

Profit

Amount
`

Parent    

Arihant Capital Markets Limited 66.82%  75,84,84,112  89.36%  14,91,03,230 

Subsidary    

 Indian    

Arihant Financial Services Limited 5.12%  5,80,63,184  3.37%  56,23,585 

Arihant Futures & Commodities Limited 11.88%  13,48,00,047  5.28%  88,05,772 

Arihant Lifespace Infra Developers Limited  10.16%  11,53,13,212  1.24%  20,66,386 

Arihant Insurance Broking Services Limited 0.75%  85,08,856  0.07%  1,16,897 

Arihant Financial Planners and Advisors Private Limited 0.27%  30,28,105  0.18%  3,03,773 

Arihant Housing Finance Corporation Limited 2.43%  2,75,29,589  0.71%  11,85,910 

Ahinsa Lifespace Infraheight Limited 1.65%  1,87,43,526  -0.01%  (8,509)

Arihant Capital (IFSC) Limited 0.94%  1,06,54,080  -0.21%  (3,45,920)

Sub Total 100.00%  113,51,24,712  100.00%  16,68,51,124 

Less Intercompany Elimination and Consolidation Adjustments   (13,40,76,480) -  -   

Total   100,10,48,232    16,68,51,124 

Minority Interest   -      -   

Grand Total   100,10,48,232    16,68,51,124 

25.  Related party transactions     
 "Related party disclosures, as required by Accounting Standard 18, “Related Party Disclosures” issued by the Institute of Chartered 

stAccountants of India for the year ended  31  March, 2018 are given below:"    

Relationships (During the year)

Key Management Personnel   Mr. Ashok Kumar Jain, Chairman & Managing Director   
  Mrs. Anita S Gandhi, Whole Time Director   
  Mr. Sunil Kumar Jain, Director   
  Mr. Akhilesh Rathi, Director   
  Mr. Pavan Kumar Ved, Director   
  Mr. Parag R. Shah, Director   
  Mr. Ashish Maheshwari,Director (from 27.05.2017)   
  Mr. Shailesh Kumath, Director (till 14.06.2017)   
     
Relatives of Key Management Personnel  Arpit Jain   
  Ashok Kumar Jain HUF   
  Kiran Jain   
  Mohini Doshi   
  Shruti Jain   
  Swati Jain   
  S. N. Gandhi & Co. 

Enterprises over which Control M/s. Shyam Developers 
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Salary & Incentive * 20620829 5091249 25712078
 22569052 2939935 25508987
Rent # 1440000 5469711 6909711
 600000 4695113 5295113
Sitting Fees % 360000 0 360000
 300000 0 300000
Legal & Professional ** 0 300000 300000
 0 0 0
Assets   
Rent Deposits ^ 350000 16487500 16837500
 350000 16537500 16887500
Share Purchased$ 0 0 0
 609750 609750 1219500

Key Management 
Personnel

Particulars Total
Relatives of Key 

Management Personnel

Figure in italics represents previous year figures

*Payment to key management personnel for Salaries includes payment to Ashok Kumar Jain ̀ 17384029 (Previous Year ̀ 19377052),  Anita 
Gandhi `3236800 (Previous Year `3192000), and to relatives of key management personal includes Shruti Jain `2361290 (Previous Year 
`800000), Swati Jain ̀ 1225303 (Previous Year ̀ 795935), Kiran Jain ̀  279000 (Previous Year ̀ 279000),  Arpit Jain ̀ 1225656 (Previous Year 
`8150000) and Mohini Doshi ̀ Nil (Previous Year ̀ 250000).

# Rent paid to Ashok Kumar Jain `1440000 (Previous Year ̀ 600000), Kiran Jain `4055211 (Previous Year ̀ 3250403),  Ashok Kumar Jain 
HUF `581244 (Previous Year `596244), Arpit Jain `581256 (Previous Year `596256) and  Shyam Developers `252000 (Previous Year 
`252210).     

% Sitting fees paid to Sunil Kumar Jain `80000 (Previous Year `80000), Shailesh Kumath `20000 (Previous Year `40000), Paragbhai Shah 
`40000 (Previous Year ̀ 80000), Pavan Ved ̀ 80000 (Previous Year ̀ 40000),  Ashish Maheshwari ̀ 60000 (Previous Year ̀ Nil) and Akhilesh 
Rathi ̀  80000 (Previous Year ̀ 20000).

^ Deposit given includes Ashok Kumar Jain `350000 (Previous Year `350000), Kiran Jain `2518750 (Previous Year `2543750), Ashok 
Kumar Jain HUF `484375 (Previous Year `496875), Arpit Jain `484375 (Previous Year `496875) and Shyam Developers `13000000 
(Previous Year ̀ 13000000).

$ Share of Arihant Financial Planners & Advisors Private Ltd. purchased from Ashok Kumar Jain ̀ Nil (Previous Year ̀ 609750) & Kiran Jain 
`Nil (Previous Year ̀ 609750)

** S. N. Gandhi & Co. ̀ 300000 (Previous Year ̀ Nil) 

2017-2018Particulars 2016-2017

i) Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders (`) 20,66,83,001 16,68,51,124

ii) Weighted Average number of equity shares used as denominator for calculating EPS 2,08,22,560 2,08,22,560

iii) Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (`) 9.93 8.01

iv) Face value per Equity Share (`) 5 5

26. Earning per Share

2017-2018Defined Contribution Plans 2016-2017

Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund 7,92,619  4,12,386

Employer's Contribution to ESIC 5,45,100  1,64,867

27. As per Accounting Standard 15 "Employee Benefits", the disclosure as defined in the Accounting Standard are given below:
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28.  Income in foreign currency ̀ Nil (previous year ̀ Nil). Expenditure in foreign currency ̀ Nil (previous year ̀ Nil).     
       
29.  Contingent Liability & Capital Commitments     
 (i)  Bank Guarantees of `10000000 (Previous Year `13500000) extended to ICCL Bombay Stock Exchange Limited under the 

mandatory rules for membership and ̀  63500000(Previous Year ̀ 50000000) towards additional margin.     
     
 (ii)  Bank Guarantees of ` 7500000(Previous Year `7500000) extended to National Securities Clearing Corporation Limited 

under the mandatory rules for membership and ̀  99800000(Previous Year ̀ 210500000) towards additional margin.     
     
 (iii)  Bank Guarantees of ̀ 1500000 (Previous Year ̀ 1500000) extended to Metropolitan Stock Exchange India Limited under the 

mandatory rules for membership .     
     
 (iv)  Bank Guarantees of ̀ 380100000 (Previous Year ̀ 379500000) extended to Axis Bank Ltd ( Clearning Member of Company in 

NSE FNO segment) towards margin requirement.     
     
 (v)  Bank Guarantees of ̀ 265550000/- (Previous Year ̀ 201250000/-) extended to National Commodity Clearing Corporation 

Limited under the mandatory rules for membership and towards additional margin..     
     
 (vi)  Bank Guarantees of ̀ 87250000 (Previous Year ̀  1097500000) extended to Multi Commodity Exchange of India Ltd under 

the mandatory rules for membership and towards additional margin.     
     
 (v)  Corporate guarantee of ̀ 400000000 (Previous Year ̀ 400000000) given to banks on behalf of subsidiary M/s Arihant Futures 

and Commodities Limited.     
     
 (viii)  Income Tax Demand for various years ̀ 4594583 (`4594583)     

 (ix)  Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts ̀ Nil (Previous Year ̀ Nil).      
     
30.  Fixed Deposits     
 Fixed deposits with scheduled banks include ̀ 158400000 (Previous Year ̀ 3732953 ) which is under the lien of National Securities 

Clearing Corporation Limited,`258300000 (Previous Year ̀ 800000) which is under the lien of Axis Bank Ltd for NSEFNO segment, 
`500000 (Previous Year `500000) which is under the lien of Axis Bank Ltd for MSEIL currency derivative segment, `5000000 
(Previous Year ̀ 30000000) which is under the lien of National Commodity Clearing Corporation Limited and ̀ 9900000 (Previous 
Year ̀ Nil) which is under the lien of Multi Commodity Exchange of India Ltd.     

     
31.  Disclosures under The Micro, Small, & Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006     
 Under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, certain disclosures are required to be made relating to 

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (SME). The Company is in the process of compiling relevant information from its suppliers 
about their coverage under the said act. Since the relevant information is not readily available, no disclosures have been made in the 
accounts. however, in view of the management, the amounts due to the suppliers are paid within the mutually agreed credit period 
and therefore, there will not be any interest that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act.     

Defined Benefit Plan     

The gratuity paid by the company is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using 
the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit 
entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the financial obligation. The company does not has any policy for leave 
encashment. 

2017-2018Actuarial Assumptions 2016-2017

Mortality Table (LIC) 2006-08 2006-08

 (Ultimate) (Ultimate)

Discount rate (per annum) 6.93% 6.77%

Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) 5% 5%
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32. Securities are normally held by the Group in its own name except securities pledged with exchange.     
     
33.  Securities received from clients as collateral for margins are held by the Group in its own name in a fiduciary capacity.     
     
34. Segment Reporting     
 As per the definition of ‘Business Segment’ and ‘Geographical Segment’ contained in Accounting Standard 17 “Segment Reporting”, 

the management is of the opinion that the Company’s operation comprise of operating in Primary and Secondary market and 
incidental activities thereto, there is neither more than one reportable business segment nor more than one reportable geographical 
segment, and, therefore, segment information as per Accounting Standard 17 is not required to be disclosed.     

     
35.  Events occurring after Balance sheet date     
 The Board of Directors has recommended Equity dividend of ̀  0.75 per share for the financial year 2017-18.     
     

th
36.  The Financial Statements were authorised for issue by the directors on 28  May, 2018.     
     
37.  Previous year figures     
 The previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified, wherever necessary to conform to current year presentation.     

As per our report of even date
For Dinesh Ajmera & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No:011970C

CA. Dinesh Ajmera
Partner
Membership No. : 402629
Indore, 28th May, 2018

Ashok Kumar Jain
(Chairman & Managing 
Director)
DIN-00184729

For and on behalf of the Board

Anita S Gandhi
(Whole Time Director)
DIN-02864338

Mahesh Pancholi
(Company Secretary)

Tarun Goyal
(CFO)
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